


DRAFT 3.14.2021 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF GWINNETT 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, 
DEVELOPMENT, AND OPERATION OF CERTAIN COMPONENTS OF THE GROVE 

AT TOWNE CENTER IN THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE 

 This INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (the “IGA”) is made and entered into 
as of __________, 2021, by and between CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA (the “City”), a 
municipal corporation of the State of Georgia, and the DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA (the “Authority”), a public body corporate and 
politic duly created and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia. Collectively, the City and 
the Authority may be referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
 WHEREAS, the City, the Authority, and Mid Cast Snellville, LLC are parties to that 
certain Master Development Agreement dated August 26, 2019, as amended (the “Master 
Development Agreement”), under which they are collaborating to develop “The Grove at Towne 
Center” within the city limits of the City; 
  
 WHEREAS, the Authority and the City have previously entered into separate 
intergovernmental agreements for each parcel of land needed for the STC Project as it was 
purchased and now wish to enter into this IGA to govern the rights and responsibilities of the City 
and the Authority with regard to the development, construction, and operation of the STC Project 
on the Property;  
  
 WHEREAS, the City and the Authority are financing and constructing an approximately 
750-space parking deck as the main parking facility for the STC Project, which is designed to serve 
the parking needs of the STC Project;  

 
 WHEREAS, the Authority expects to record the Parking Deck Declaration and the Master 
Declaration, which will govern the rights of the parties participating in the development of the 
STC Project with respect to the Parking Deck and the STC Project, in general;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority expects to enter into certain construction contracts (the 
“Construction Contracts”) for construction of a parking deck, a city market facility, and certain 
public improvements in connection with the development of the STC Project [ARE WE ABLE 
TO FURTHER IDENTIFY EACH CONTRACT?]; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into this IGA for the purpose of authorizing certain 
actions to be taken by the Authority and contracting with the Authority to specify certain 
operational details regarding the Parking Deck and the other Municipal Improvements as part of 
their responsibility to use these assets to stimulate growth, revitalization, and economic expansion 
in the City. 

 



2 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements 
hereinafter contained and in furtherance of the mutual public purposes hereby sought to be 
achieved, the City and the Authority do hereby agree, as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

 The following words and terms shall have the meanings set forth below. Capitalized words 
and phrases not defined below or elsewhere herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the 
Master Development Agreement.  

 “City Market” means the Improvements to be constructed by the Authority on Parcel 
4b(Market). 

 “Construction Contracts” is defined in the Recitals of this IGA. 

 “IGA” means this Intergovernmental Agreement between the City and the Authority 
concerning ownership, operation, and maintenance of certain components of the STC Project. 

 “Project Documents” means, collectively, the Parking Deck Declaration, the Master 
Declaration, the Joint Development Agreement, and the Construction Contracts. 

ARTICLE II 
REPRESENTATIONS 

 
Section 2.1. Representations of the City.  The City makes the following representations: 

 
a. The recitals above are hereby incorporated into the terms of this IGA as if fully set 

forth herein. 
 

b. The has City previously determined that the acquisition of the Property by the 
Authority was in the best interest of the City and the inhabitants thereof. 

 
c. The City has previously determined and now reaffirms that the development of 

the STC Project will provide job opportunities, encourage private development, 
relieve unemployment in the City, provide recreational opportunities, and 
otherwise support and expand the economy of the City. 

 
d. The City believes that the assistance of the City in financing the acquisition and 

development of the STC Project is of critical importance to the Authority.  
 

e. The City has the authority to enter into this IGA and perform all obligations 
contained herein, and has, by proper action, duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this IGA. 

 
f. Article IX, Section VI, Paragraph III of the Constitution of the State of Georgia of 

1983 provides that the development of trade, commerce, industry and employment 



3 
 

opportunities is a public purpose vital to the welfare of the people of the State of 
Georgia. 

 
g. The Property is within the Downtown Development Area as designated by the City 

for the operation of the Authority, as provided in the Downtown Development 
Authorities Law. 

 
Section 2.2. Representations of the Authority.  The Authority makes the following 
representations: 

 
a. The recitals above are hereby incorporated into the terms of this IGA as if fully set 

forth herein. 
 

b. The Authority is a public body corporate and politic duly created and existing under 
the laws of the State of Georgia for the purpose to (a) develop and promote trade, 
commerce, industry, and employment opportunities for the public good and the 
general welfare and to promote the general welfare of the state, (b) to make and 
execute contracts and other instruments necessary to exercise the powers of the 
Authority, (c) to sell, lease, exchange, transfer, assign, pledge, mortgage, dispose 
of, or grant options for any real or personal property or interest therein for any such 
purposes, (d) to dispose of any real property for fair market value, regardless of 
prior development of such property as a project, whenever the board of directors of 
the Authority may deem such disposition to be in the best interests of the Authority 
if the board of directors of the Authority prior to such disposition shall determine 
that such real property no longer can be used advantageously as a project for the 
development of trade, commerce, industry, and employment opportunities, and (e) 
to mortgage, convey, pledge, or assign any properties, revenues, income, tolls, 
charges, or fees owned or received by the Authority;  
 

c. The Authority hereby warrants that it is not subject to any bylaw or contractual or 
other limitation or provision of any nature whatsoever which in any way limits, 
restricts or prevents it from entering into this IGA and performing its obligations 
hereunder. 

ARTICLE III 
TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
Section 3.1. Term.  The term of this IGA shall commence with the execution and delivery 
hereof and shall extend for fifty (50) years. The Parties shall meet within a reasonable time in 
advance of the expiration date of the initial term of this IGA to consider its renewal. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

AGREEMENTS REGARDING THE PROPERTY  
 

Section 4.1. The Property. The Parties acknowledge that the Authority holds title to the Property 
and, as such, shall act as the appropriate “City Party” under the Master Development Agreement 
for purposes of the conveyance of the Phase I Property and the Phase II Property to the Developer 



4 
 

and the acquisition of the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels and the Phase I(b) Municipal 
Development Parcels, all as contemplated in the Master Development Agreement. The Parties 
agree that, during the term of this IGA, title to the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels and 
the Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels shall be vested in the Authority. The Parties agree 
that the Authority shall manage the improvements constructed on the Phase I(a) Municipal 
Development Parcels and the Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels in a manner that is 
consistent with the Project Documents. The Authority may negotiate leases of all or a portion the 
City Market and work with prospective tenants thereof upon such terms and conditions as are 
determined acceptable by the Authority, subject to the approval of the Mayor and Council of the 
City. The Authority will follow the directions of the Mayor and Council of the City as to how, 
when and to whom the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels or the Phase I(b) Municipal 
Development Parcels are disposed of. The Authority agrees that the proceeds of any sale, lease or 
other disposition of any of the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels or the Phase I(b) 
Municipal Development Parcels shall be deposited or disposed of as directed by the City. The City 
agrees that neither the sale, lease or other disposition of all or any portion of the Phase I(a) 
Municipal Development Parcels or the Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels or any interest 
therein shall affect its obligations under this IGA. 

 
ARTICLE V 

PROJECT INSTRUMENTS; OTHER 
 
Section 5.1 City and Authority Agreements. Subject to the details set forth generally in 
this IGA and specifically in this Article, the City consents to the Authority entering into the 
Parking Deck Declaration and the Master Declaration. In addition, the Authority, on behalf of the 
City and at the City’s express instruction, shall enter into the Construction Contracts. 
 
Section 5.2. City and Obligations. The City agrees that, during the term of this IGA, the City 
shall be obligated to fund in its general operating budget the funds necessary to satisfy the 
contractual commitments of the Authority as follows:  
 

a. The Parking Deck Declaration. The City shall provide the Authority with funding 
necessary on an annual basis (or such other frequency as may be necessary) to 
allow the Authority to satisfy all of its obligations under the Parking Deck 
Declaration;  

b. The Master Declaration.  The City shall provide the Authority with funding 
necessary on an annual basis (or such other frequency as may be necessary) to 
allow the Authority to satisfy all of its obligations under the Master Declaration; 
and 

c. The Joint Development Agreement.  The City shall provide the Authority with 
funding necessary on a monthly basis (or such other frequency as may be 
necessary) to allow the Authority to satisfy all of its obligations under the Joint 
Development Agreement; and 

d. Construction Contracts. The City shall provide the Authority with funding 
necessary on a monthly basis (or such other frequency as may be necessary) to 



5 
 

allow the Authority to satisfy all of its obligations under the Construction 
Contracts. 

Section 5.3. Source of Funds for City's Payment Obligations; Limitations on Additional 
Contracts. 
 
 The obligation of the City to make payments under this IGA shall constitute a general 
obligation of the City, payable out of any funds lawfully available to it for such purpose from 
whatever source derived (including general funds). The City covenants and agrees that it 
shall, to the extent necessary, levy an annual ad valorem tax on all taxable property  located within 
the territorial limits of the City, as now existent and as the same may hereafter  be extended, at 
such rate or rates as may be necessary to produce in each year revenues which will be sufficient 
to fulfill the City's obligations under this IGA, from which revenues the City agrees to appropriate 
sums sufficient to pay in full when due all of the City's obligations under this IGA. The City 
hereby creates and grants a lien in favor of the Authority on any and all revenues realized by the 
City from such tax, if levied, to make the payments that are required under this IGA, which lien 
is superior to any that can hereafter be created. Nothing herein contained, however, shall be 
construed as limiting the right of the City to make the payments called for by this IGA out of any 
funds lawfully available to it for such purpose, from whatever source derived (including general 
funds). 

Section 5.4. Agency for Construction Contracts [BROAD ENOUGH?]. 

The Authority hereby appoints the City as its exclusive agent for the purpose of 
administering the Construction Contracts, and more generally, for causing the acquisition, 
construction, equipping, and installation of Municipal Improvements. The City, as agent for the 
Authority for such purpose, assumes all rights, duties and responsibilities of the Authority 
regarding supervision of the acquisition, construction, and installation of the Improvements as are 
granted to or imposed upon the Authority pursuant to the Construction Contracts. The City shall 
supervise the acquisition, construction, equipping, and installation of the Municipal Improvements 
in a manner to ensure that, upon final completion thereof, the Municipal Improvements shall be 
free and clear of all liens and encumbrances that may arise in connection with the work performed 
and that the Municipal Improvements will be acceptable to the City for their use, occupancy, and 
operation during the term of this IGA. The City is hereby authorized to execute and deliver any 
documents with respect to administering the Project Documents. The Authority shall cooperate 
with the City, as requested by the City, in connection with the execution, delivery, and performance 
of any Project Documents.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, title to the Municipal 
Improvements shall be and shall remain in the Authority. 

Section 5.5 Amendments. The Authority shall not alter or amend the Project Documents 
without the City’s express written consent.  

Section 5.5 Communications. On a frequency to be established by the City, but not less than 
quarterly, the Authority shall provide to the City information regarding the facilities subject to this 
IGA that will allow the City to reasonably ascertain the status of such facilities and the resources 
(financial or otherwise) that the City needs available to assist the Authority in its operations and 
maintenance plans thereof.  



6 
 

ARTICLE VI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 6.1. Governing Law. This IGA and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto 
(including third party beneficiaries) shall be governed, construed and interpreted according to the 
laws of the State of Georgia, without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. 
 
Section 6.2. Entire Agreement. This IGA expresses the entire understanding and all 
agreements between the parties hereto. 
 
Section 6.3. Severability. If any provision of this IGA shall be held or deemed to be or shall, in 
fact, be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or 
jurisdictions or in all jurisdictions, or in all cases because it conflicts with any other provision or 
provisions hereof or any constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other reason, 
such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or 
unenforceable in any other case or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions 
herein contained invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever. The invalidity of 
any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections contained in this IGA shall not affect the 
remaining portions of this IGA or any part thereof. 
 
Section 6.4. Survival of Warranties. All agreements, representations and warranties of the 
parties hereunder, or made in writing by or on behalf of them in connection with the transactions 
contemplated hereby, shall survive the execution and delivery hereof, regardless of any 
investigation or other action taken by any person relying thereon. 
 
Section 6.5. Counterparts. This IGA may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall be an original, and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
Section 6.6. Amendments in Writing. No waiver, amendment, release or modification of this 
IGA shall be established by conduct, custom or course of dealing, but solely by an instrument in 
writing only executed by the parties hereto. 
 
Section 6.7. Notices. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, any notices, demands, 
approvals, consents, requests and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed given when the writing is delivered in person or five days after being mailed, if mailed, 
by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the City and the Authority, 
respectively, at the addresses shown below or at such other addresses as may be furnished by the 
City or the Authority in writing from time to time: 
 

CITY:    City of Snellville  
      2342 Oak Road 
      Snellville, Georgia 30078-2361 
 
  AUTHORITY:  Downtown Development Authority of 
      Snellville, Georgia 
      2342 Oak Road 



7 
 

      Snellville, Georgia 30078-2361 
 
Section 6.8. Limitation of Rights.  Nothing in this IGA, express or implied, shall give to any 
person, other than the parties hereto and their successors and assigns hereunder, any benefit or any 
legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this IGA. 
 

[Execution on Following Page] 



8 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Authority have caused this IGA to be 
executed in their respective corporate name sand have caused their respective corporate seals to 
be hereunto affixed and attested by their duly authorized officers, all as of this ______day of 
__________, 2021. 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered in the   CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA 
presence of: 
 
_______________________________________ By:  ________________________________ 
Unofficial Witness Barbara Bender, Mayor 
 
______________________________________ Attest:  _____________________________ 
Notary Public       Melisa Arnold, City Clerk 
 
My Commission Expires:  ________________     [SEAL] 
 
 [NOTARIAL SEAL] 
 
 
       DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT  
       AUTHORITY OF  
Signed, sealed and delivered in the   SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA 
presence of: 
 
_______________________________________ By:  ________________________________ 
Unofficial Witness Don Britt, Chairman 
 
______________________________________ Attest:  _____________________________ 
Notary Public       Secretary 
 
My Commission Expires:  ________________     [SEAL] 
 
 [NOTARIAL SEAL] 
 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCY AGREEMENT 
 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCY AGREEMENT for the City of 
Snellville, Town Center Project, dated as of April _____, 2021 (this “Agency Agreement”), is 
by and between the DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF SNELLVILLE, 
GEORGIA, a Georgia downtown development authority and a public body corporate and politic 
(the “Authority”), and the CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, a municipal corporation of 
the State of Georgia (the “City ”). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is issuing its Downtown Development Authority of 
Snellville, Georgia Town Center Project Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A (the “Series 
2021A Bonds”), pursuant to a Trust Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2019, by and between the 
Authority and Regions Bank, as Trustee (the “Original Indenture”), as supplemented by a First 
Supplemental Indenture (the “Series 2021A Supplemental Indenture” and, together with the 
Original Indenture, the “Series 2021A Indenture”), and its Downtown Development Authority 
of Snellville, Georgia Town Center Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2021B (the “Series 2021B 
Bonds,” and, together with the Series 2021A Bonds, the “Series 2021 Bonds”), pursuant to a 
Trust Indenture, dated as of __________ 1, 2021, by and between the Authority and Regions 
Bank, as Trustee (the “Series 2021B Indenture” and, together with the Series 2021A Indenture, 
the “Series 2021 Indentures”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority and the City have entered into those certain 
Intergovernmental Agreements of even date herewith (the “Intergovernmental Agreements”), 
under which the the Authority has agreed to cause the issuance and sale of the Series 2021 Bonds 
pursuant to the Series 2021 Indentures in order to provide funding for a portion of the costs to 
develop the Towne Center project with the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2021 Bonds and 
under which the City has agreed to pay to the Authority sufficient moneys to permit the 
Authority to pay the debt service on the Series 2021 Bonds, all as provided in the Series 2021 
Indentures and the Intergovernmental Agreements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has expended considerable amounts of time, money, and effort in 
obtaining architectural and other professional services, in preparing bid and other documents for 
acquisition, construction, equipping and installation of the municipal facilities comprising the 
Towne Center project and in awarding bids in accordance with applicable law, and the Authority 
desires to engage the City pursuant to the terms hereof to administer the proceeds of the Series 
2021 Bonds towards the acquisition, construction, equipping, and installation of the facilities 
comprising the municipal portions of the Towne Center project; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein 
contained, the Authority and the City hereby agree as follows: 
 

Section 1. Definitions.  All capitalized terms used herein which are not defined 
herein shall have the same meaning as when such terms are used in the Series 2021 Indentures. 
 



2 

Section 2. Disbursements from the Project Accounts.  Whenever payments from 
the Series 2021A Project Account or the Series 2021B Project Account (together, as applicable, 
the “Project Accounts”) are to be made to satisfy an obligation for the Towne Center project, 
the Authorized City Representative shall coordinate with the Authorized Officer of the Authority 
to file with the Trustee the written requisitions required by the Series 2021 Indentures to be 
delivered to effect disbursements from the Project Accounts and shall furnish or cause to be 
furnished such other certificates and documents as may be required to establish that there has not 
been filed with or served upon the City or the Authority notice of any lien, right to lien, 
attachment upon or claim affecting the right to receive payment of any of the moneys payable to 
any of the persons named in such written requisitions, which has not been released or will not be 
released simultaneously with such payment, other than materialmen’s or mechanics’ liens 
accruing by mere operation of law which will not be released until final payment is made. The 
City shall also provide certificates in connection with such written requisitions from the 
architects and engineers performing work for the Towne Center project as may be customary to 
certify their approval of the payments therein requested to be made and further certifying that 
insofar as such obligations for payment were incurred for work, materials, equipment and 
supplies, such work was actually performed, or such materials, equipment or supplies were 
actually installed, were delivered at the construction site of the work for that purpose or were 
delivered for storage or fabrication at the place or places approved by the City. More generally, 
all disbursements from the Project Accounts shall be approved by the Authorized City 
Representative. 
 

Section 3. Ratification.  The Authority hereby ratifies and approves any and all 
actions undertaken prior to the execution of this Agency Agreement by the City on behalf of the 
Authority for the Towne Center project. 
 

Section 4. Term of this Agency Agreement.  This Agency Agreement shall 
terminate thirty (30) days after disbursement of all funds in the Project Accounts, except that the 
City may thereafter notify contractors of defects in construction and demand correction in 
accordance with whatever warranties may be applicable.  If the defects are not immediately 
corrected, the City, at its sole expense (but only from appropriated moneys legally available for 
such purpose), may initiate and pursue any remedies which may be available to the City to 
enforce correction of construction defects. 

 
[Execution on Following Pages] 

 
 
 
 



 

3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed and attested by their proper officers thereunto duly authorized as of the day and year 
first above written. 

 
AUTHORITY: 

 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA 

 
 
 

By:         
      Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Secretary 
 
 [SEAL] 



 

4 

CITY: 
 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA 
 
 
 

By:        
      Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Clerk 
 

[SEAL] 









CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
MEETINGS AND LOCAL EVENTS 

MARCH 22, 2021 
 

March 22 
Council Meeting 
Monday, March 22, 2021 
6:30 pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall  
7:30pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
March 23 
Snellville Youth Commission Meeting 
Tuesday, March 23, 2021 
6:00 pm  
Virtual Go To Meeting 
 
March 23 
Planning Commission Meeting 
Tuesday, March 23, 2021 
7:00 pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall 
7:30 pm Meeting – Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
March 28 
Broadcast of 03/22/21 Council Meeting 
Sunday, March 28, 2021 
Watch the broadcast of the 03/22/21 Council Meeting on Comcast Channel 25 at 6:30pm 
 
April 1 
Snellville Youth Commission Application Period Closes 
Thursday, April 1, 2021 
2:30 pm  
 
April 2 
Red Cross Blood Drive 
Friday, April 2, 2021 
1:30 pm  
Community Room, City Hall 
 
April 3 
Extended Farmers’ Market – Farm Products 
Saturday, April 3, 2021 
9:00am-12:00pm 
City Hall Parking Lot 
 
April 8 
Snellville Youth Commission Advisory Board Meeting 
Thursday, April 8, 2021 
6:00 pm  
Conference Room 145, City Hall 
 
April 12 
Council Meeting 
Monday, April 12, 2021 
6:30pm Work Session – Community Room, City Hall 
7:30pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall 











 
City of Snellville 

2021 Work Retreat Report 
  1. Towne Center:  a. Write text amendment to Towne Center overlay district to create a tiered approach, outside of Towne Center core, in order to alleviate economically-demanding requirements. Jason/ Chuck  b. Review boundaries annually. c. The expanded overlay boundaries currently have a constricting six-month non-conforming threshold.  d. Don’t want to put business owners in difficult spot because of pandemic and requirement to conform to new overlay guidelines which, for some, might require a complete rebuild.  e. Don’t need the message/policy too stringent once TC begins to be a catalyst for development. f. Proper uses and called for improvements are most important within the expanded area. g. Southside—make sure changes don’t create perception that city doesn’t care; work with older structures and their owners. 2. Towne Center Operations: a. Plan for future Grove area needs: Extra police officers, public works staff and janitorial. b. Towne Center budget needs will be shown in separate Department to cover all DDA reimbursements for Grove services. Bond proceeds and debt service, SPLOST proceeds and expenditure and other sources and uses will also be transparent. c. Millage rate increase will be necessary to cover debt service on $20 million in bonds. d. Potential new property tax revenue from Phase 1 ($85 million private investment) would be $156,000; surrounding property values will increase, but slowly. 3. Towne Center Publicity and Promotion:  a. Drive the work of Intrepid  4. Planning commission: a. Encourage Board applicants, likely to have other vacancies soon. b. Arrange for a Saturday training class on parliamentary procedures; Dennis Conway as instructor.  c. Draft text amendment to require training for new commissioners. 5. Amendment to UDO: 



a. Draft UDO amendment for potential package sales and cannabis retail uses, with suggestions for zoning classifications and other restrictions, and a map where these uses may be allowed. Needs to be 60 days ahead of referendum call, so need to have by July 1.  b. Hold joint work session w/ Planning Commission and Board of Appeals about said amendment. c. Put amendment on referendum for citizen support in the fall if legislation passes.  6. Curb and Gutter and Sidewalks:  a. Research cost and company to update 2008 Sidewalk Master Plan to include costs and priorities for sidewalks and curbs/gutter. b. Research areas appropriate for an assessment program for curb and gutter work. c. Consider SPLOST money for sidewalk construction. 7. Roundabout landscaping:  a. Discuss with county. b. Discuss with garden clubs about adoption and maintenance. 8. Senior Center: a. Expand Senior Advisory Board and include a council member. b. Hold quarterly meetings and distribute minutes of board meetings. c. Address programming issues, communication, and marketing.  d. Create marketing plan to include all modes of communication, how to increase participation; constant contact with reminders.  9. Murals on Highway 78:  a. Address existing mural and beautification of all concrete retaining walls on Hwy. 78.  10. Fireworks:  a. Discuss fireworks ordinance with police department and counsel to shorten allowed times.  11. Street lights:  a. Ask community on Facebook and website to report to City where street lights are out.  b. Need more ways to keep up with them. Police and Public Works help administration keep running list. Walton EMC is working on it, but not their top priority.  12. Invocation and Pledge: Set-up schedule where M&C is responsible for covering two months/each year. 13. Citizens Advisory Council:  



a. Continue conversation about creating an advisory council started after the Resolution on racism was adopted: What type of issues would they address and how? What would the community expectations be? b. Approach racial issues in community through education and communication. c. Need more town halls to be proactive and keep communication lines open. d. Use facts and numbers to openly answer community concerns about racial make-up of Municipal Court attendance.  e. Better publicize Police department policies on de-escalation and numerous other progressive efforts to address the community concerns Council is hearing. 14. City Government in Neighborhoods:  a. Need a forum for a dialogue with community; to get to know people b. Hold neighborhood block parties to have Council activities outside of city hall. 15. City Website: a. Email Eric & Brian about ideas on how to address navigation issues for upcoming revamp of website. Simplify searches for information our citizens look for. b. Post council meetings on Facebook and improve outreach to constituents. 16. Recognize City Staff:  a. Hold employee appreciation events in each department. 17. Arts Commission:  a. Appoint five people to form an arts commission to showcase cultural diversity of city. b. Solicit and review proposals to create an arts master plan.  18. City Hall Culture: Establish better guidelines for City personnel when it comes to wellness program activities and inter-office communications during work hours.   19. Digital Badge program:  a. Designate an employee to champion.  20. Assistant City Manager:  a. Put in the budget for start date on July 1 or earlier.  b. Will include reorganization of City Org Chart.   21. Annexation:  a. Develop list of areas to consider for annexation within next year: Mt. View/Williams Place, Summit Chase, neighborhoods next to Sam’s Club, and Three Bars area. b. Present previous annexation plan to council. c.  Start conversations with residents in those areas and determine zoning.  













Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO: The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: March 22, 2021 
 
RE: #RZ 20-04 LUP 20-03 
 
DEVELOPMENT: 101-Unit Townhome Development 

14.7± Acres at 2465 Scenic Hwy. S, Snellville, Georgia 
   
STATUS: Continuance from Feb 22nd 2nd Reading/Public Hearing 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applications to amend the Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Map; Official Zoning Map amendment and request for variance for a 101-Unit 
Single-family Attached (Townhome) Development on a 14.7± acre property 
located at 2465 Scenic Hwy. S, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcels 5006 002 and 5006 
003.  

UPDATE – Upon concerns about density and overall quality of life to Lanier 
Forest residents, the applicant asked for the hearing to be tabled. The applicant 
has since provided and new site plan with a reduction of 11 units bringing the 
total down to 90 units.  The site plan also pulls the development further back 
from Lanier Forest. The applicant concurrently provided revised front elevations 
with enhancements made to the garages to make them more aesthetically 
pleasing. 

Financial Impact:  Site Development Permit fees; Building 
Permit fees; Real Property Taxes 

 
Planning Commission 
Meeting: January 26, 2021 
 
Recommendations: 

Case No.  LUP 20-03 RZ 20-04 
Planning 
Department Approval Approval 

Planning 
Commission Approval Approval 

 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings: February 8, 2021 (1st Reading)  

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 



 
 
 
 
14.7± Acres at 2465 Scenic Hwy. S, Snellville, Georgia  
Case #RZ 20-04 LUP 20-03 
March 22, 2021  
Page… 2 
 
 

February 22, 2021 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing –TABLED) 
March 22, 2021 (Public Hearing) 

 
Action requested: Consideration, Public Hearing and Action 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

• Letter of Intent (10-09-2020) 
• #RZ 20-04 Application (10-09-2020) 
• #LUP 20-03 Application (10-09-2020) 
• Property Survey (10-09-2020) 
• Property Legal Descriptions (10-09-2020) 
• Supplements to Applications (10-09-2020) 
• 9-18-2020 Master Rezoning Site Plan (10-09-2020) 
• Sample Elevation Rendering & Photos (10-09-2020) 
• 11-24-2020 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (11-11-

2020) 
• Official 1-26-2021 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes (2-

24-2021) 
• 1-26-2021 Planning Commission Case Report (2-1-2021) 
• 2-8-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis with 

Planning Commission Report (2-2-2021) 
• Draft Ordinance(s) (2-4-2021) 
• Conditions Only Recommendation (2-9-2021) 
• Variances Only Recommendation (2-9-2021) 
• 2-22-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis with 

Planning Commission Report (2-15-2021) 
• Sample Front Elevation with Enhanced Garage Doors (3-8-2021) 
• 3-7-2021 REVISED Master Rezoning Plan (3-8-2021) 
• Revised Draft Ordinance(s) (3-18-2021) 

 
 

https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/letter-of-intent-10-09-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/rz-20-04-application-10-09-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/lup-20-03-application-10-09-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/20160-alta1.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/property-legal-description-10-09-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/supplements-to-applications-10-09-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/20160.00-site-zone-1.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/sample-elevation-rendering--photos-10-09-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/rz-20-04-lup-20-03-meritage-townhomes-staff-report-11-11-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/pc-case-report-rz-20-04-lup-20-03-jan-26-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/rz-20-04-lup-20-03-meritage-townhomes-staff-report-2-1-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/2017-agenda-packet-materials
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/rz-20-04-lup-20-03-conditions-only-2-9-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/rz-20-04-cup-20-03-variances-only-2-9-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/2-22-2021-rz-20-04-lup-20-03-meritage-townhomes-staff-report-2-3-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/enhanced-garage-doors.jpg
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2020-agenda-packet/rz-20-04-lup-20-03/3-7-2021-site-zone-3-updated-pn-20160.00.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/2017-agenda-packet-materials
https://www.snellville.org/pc-agendas-minutes


ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-05 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND 
USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 14.724± ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 6 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, 
GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2465 SCENIC HIGHWAY S., SNELLVILLE, 
GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 20-03 
 
SIZE: 14.724 Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2465 Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCELS: R5006 002 and R5006 003 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Office-Professional 
 and Low-Density Residential 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 90-Unit Single-family Residential 
 Townhome Community 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Crawford F. Juhan, Jr., Snellville, Georgia 
 Edjen Enterprises, LLC, Longboat Key, FL 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Meritage Homes of Georgia 
 c/o Mitch Peevy 
 770-361-8444 or MitchPeevy@gmail.com 
 

 



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 2 of 6 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend the designated land use as it applies to the 14.724± acre tract of land located at 2465 

Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcels R5006 002 and R5006 003) for a 90-

unit single-family attached (townhome) development; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    The future land use designation of the 14.724± acre tract of land as 

shown on the revised site plan entitled “Scenic Hwy at Henry Clower a Master Planned 

Residential Development for Meritage Homes”, dated 9-18-2020 and revised 3-7-2021 

(received 3-8-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference is hereby changed from Office-Professional and Low-Density 

Residential to Medium-Density Residential. 

This change in future land use is to be noted on the City of Snellville 2040 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, as previously amended and as approved by the 

Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this 

Ordinance. The future land use map shall also be amended with an editorial note specifying 

the date this Snellville Land Use Plan Amendment was approved by the Mayor and Council 

and specifying the parcel affected by this Ordinance. Until the change is indicated on the 

City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor 



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 3 of 6 
 

and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any 

discrepancy between this Ordinance and the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and Council. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 4 of 6 
 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City 

of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are hereby made 

applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE AE

ZONE AE

FLOODWAY

ZONE AE

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

 10

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25

 26

 27

 28

 29

 30

 31

 32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

4

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

FULL ACCESS

ENTRANCE/EXIT

STORMWATER

FACILITY

POCKET

PARK

DOG

PARK

OUTDOOR

LIVING SPACE

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

MAIL

KIOSK

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

50' UNDISTURBED BUFFER

75' IMPERVIOUS BUFFER

5

0

'

 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

7

5

'

 

I

M

P

E

R

V

I

O

U

S

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

75

76

77

78

79

45

44

11

2

2

.

6

4

'

2

1

.

5

'

1

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

3

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

1

0

'

2

4

'

9

5

'

2

1

'

2

7

'

1

6

'

2

2

'

1" = 60'

30 60 120 180

0

20160.00

SEPT. 18, 2020

S
C

E
N

I
C

 
H

W
Y

 
a

t
 
H

E
N

R
Y

 
C

L
O

W
E

R

A
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

F
O

R

M
E

R
I
T

A
G

E
 
H

O
M

E
S

2
7
0
0
 
C

U
M

B
E

R
L
A

N
D

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

S
U

I
T

E
 
4
0
0

A
T

L
A

N
T

A
,
 
G

E
O

R
G

I
A

 
3
0
3
3
9

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
9
1
2
-
2
2
2
-
5
6
4
6

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

N
E

L
L
V

I
L
L
E

,

 
G

W
I
N

N
E

T
T

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,

G
E

O
R

G
I
A

L
A

N
D

 
L
O

T
 
6

5
t
h
 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT:

J
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
1
6
0
0
0
\
D

e
\
C

o
n
c
e
p
t
s
\
Z

o
n
i
n
g
\
2
0
1
6
0
.
0
0
-
S

i
t
e
-
Z

o
n
e
-
3
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
K

W
o
o
d

 
-
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
1
 
7
:
4
7
 
P

M

DESCRIPTIONNO. BYDATE

GEORGIA WEST ZONE

GRID NORTH

SHEET

"
W

E
 
P

R
O

V
I
D

E
 
S

O
L

U
T

I
O

N
S

"

REVISIONS:

THIS SEAL IS ONLY VALID IF COUNTER SIGNED

AND DATED WITH AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE.

GSWCC LEVEL II DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
CERTIFICATION # 0000059389 EXP. 10/28/2021

R

Knowwhat'sbelow.
Callbefore you dig.

www.Georgia811.com

N

SITE LOCATION

MASTER

REZONING PLAN

Z1

24 HOUR CONTACT:

RAY RICHARD

912-222-5646

FEMA FIRM MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION

OPEN SPACE

SITE DATA:

SITE AREA 14.724 ACRES

ZONING

EXISTING ZONING BG

PROPOSED ZONING R-TH

ZONING JURISDICTION
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

USE CALCULATIONS

NET LOT AREA 14.724 ACRES

EXTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD 50 FEET

SIDE YARD 40 FEET

REAR YARD 40 FEET

INTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD

10 FEET (EXCLUDING PORCHES)

SIDE YARD

0 FEET (MIN. 20' SEPARATION BETWEEN END

UNIT BLDGS.)

REAR YARD 30 FEET

MAX. BUILDING HEIGHT 35 FEET

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

24' X 56' FRONT LOADED TOWNHOMES 90 UNITS

TOTAL SITE DENSITY PROVIDED 6.11 UPA

MAX. SITE DENSITY ALLOWED 8.0 UPA

OPEN SPACE CALCULATIONS

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED
2.945 ACRES (20% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

50% OF STREAM BUFFER AREA

0.685 ACRES (1.37 ACRES X 50%)

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

4.87 ACRES (33.1% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

6.24 ACRES (42.38% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA PROVIDED

2.36 ACRES (16% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

MIN. PARKING REQUIRED
180 SPACES (2 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

PARKING PROVIDED

270 SPACES (2 GARAGE + 1 DRIVEWAY SPACE)

GUEST PARKING PROVIDED 33 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED

303 SPACES (3.3 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT:

NTS

3/7/21*1 kw Reduce Density &

Revise Entry Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE 1 STORY WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTP 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC 2X2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH UW1 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH=1009.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WMRK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELIA SANTIAGO ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-91 DB.54016 PG.603 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRICIA HARRIS TAX ID. 5-7-90 DB.34995 PG.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD L. ADCOX TAX ID. 5-7-89 DB.50239 PG.176 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDJEN ENTERPRISES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-3 DB.51463 PG.412 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AOK PROPERTIES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-452 DB.57119 PG.405 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA DOT R/W FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1018.64 IN=1013.13(A) IN=1013.25(B) OUT=1013.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1020.02 OUT=1014.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1027.52 IN=1021.77(A) IN=1022.16(B) OUT=1021.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1034.25 SEALED

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1033.74 IN=1028.34 OUT=1028.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1032.27 IN=1026.67(A) IN=1026.87(B) OUT=1026.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1039.50 OUT=10134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1040.49 IN=1034.93 OUT=1034.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.12 IN=1037.24(A) IN=1037.34(B) OUT=1036.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.24 IN=1038.58 OUT=1038.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.50 IN=1039.24(A) IN=1039.23(B) OUT=1039.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.77 IN=1038.34 OUT=1038.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1045.51 IN=1039.02 OUT=1038.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1053.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1048.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.844 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIAN J. JUHAN TAX ID. 5-6-2 DB.56791 PG.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET IRON PIN & CAP  ELEV. = 1061.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET PK NAIL  ELEV. = 1036.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIJAD NUMANOVIC ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-87 DB.41223 PG.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA. HWY. 124 A.K.A. SCENIC HWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH LAKE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRITT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:1400051.13 E:2339632.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH TOP=1000.10 IN=995.25 OUT=995.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
(868.96)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N31°56'20"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N58°21'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(654.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S30°30'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°00'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(57.93)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S42°11'28"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S39°26'00"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(47.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(159.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°34'46"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(388.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720.08)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIE BELLE BRODNAX  TAX ID. 5-6-4A DB.30267 PG.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.880 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RAIL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW 3X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP OHW40 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1015.99 IN=1010.18 OUT=1009.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1016.16 IN=1009.36 OUT=1009.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1014.17 IN=1009.46 OUT=1009.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1014.41 IN=1008.38(A) IN=1008.20(B) IN=1007.60(C) OUT=1007.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'X4' BOX CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S77°27'46"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(637.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S25°03'37"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=1991.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S38°47'57"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.42)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S27°41'09"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=140.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=2024.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=140.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N52°24'06"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(171.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S37°36'50"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(322.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N28°47'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(514.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28°23'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
205.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF SEDIMENT BASINS GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=995.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=994.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INV=994.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA LIMIT OF REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA FLOOD ZONE AE (ZONE WITHOUT BASE FLOOR ELEVATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
This drawing is the property of Planners and Engineers Collaborative and is not to be copied in whole or in part. It is not to be used on any other project and is to be returned upon request.   Planners and Engineers Collaborative.Planners and Engineers Collaborative.

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 34393

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-05 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE 2040 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 14.724± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 
LAND LOT 6 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2465 
SCENIC HIGHWAY S., SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 20-03 
 
SIZE: 14.724 Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2465 Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCELS: R5006 002 and R5006 003 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Office-Professional 
 and Low-Density Residential 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 101-Unit Single-family Residential 
 Townhome Community 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Crawford F. Juhan, Jr., Snellville, Georgia 
 Edjen Enterprises, LLC, Longboat Key, FL 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Meritage Homes of Georgia 
 c/o Mitch Peevy 
 770-361-8444 or MitchPeevy@gmail.com 
 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 2 of 7 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny LUP 20-03, which requested to amend the designated land use as it applies to the 

14.724± acre tract of land located at 2465 Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcels R5006 002 and R5006 003) for a 101-unit single-family attached (townhome) 

development, later revised and reduced by 10-units for a 90-unit single-family attached 

(townhome) development; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change in the future land use 

designation of the 14.724± acre tract of land as shown on the site plan entitled “Scenic 

Hwy at Henry Clower a Master Planned Residential Development for Meritage Homes”, 

sealed and dated 9-18-2020 (stamped received 10-9-2020) in Exhibit “A”, and as shown 

on the 3-7-2021 revised site plan entitled “Scenic Hwy at Henry Clower a Master Planned 

Residential Development for Meritage Homes”, received 3-8-2021 in Exhibit “B”, copies 

of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 3 of 7 
 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City 

of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are hereby made 

applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 4 of 7 
 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 
  



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 5 of 7 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 6 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
  



ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE AE

ZONE AE

FLOODWAY

ZONE AE

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

 10

 11

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25

 26

 27

 28

 29

 30

 31

 32

 33

 34

 35

 36

 37

 38

 39

 40

 41

 42

 43

 44

 45

 46

 47

 48

 49

 50

 51

 52

 53

 54

 55

 56

 57

 58

 59

 60

 61

 62

 63

 64

 65

 66

 67

 68

 69

 70

 71

 72

 73

 74

 75

 76

 77

 78

 79

 80

 81

 82

 83

 84

 85

 86

 87

 88

 89

 90

 91

 92

 93

 94

 95

 96

 97

 98

 99

 100

 101

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

4

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

FULL ACCESS

ENTRANCE/EXIT

STORMWATER

FACILITY

POCKET

PARK

DOG

PARK

OUTDOOR

LIVING SPACE

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

MAIL

KIOSK

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

50' UNDISTURBED BUFFER

75' IMPERVIOUS BUFFER

5

0

'

 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

7

5

'

 

I

M

P

E

R

V

I

O

U

S

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

1

'
2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

1

.

4

3

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

1

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

3

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

1

0

'

2

4

'

9

5

'

2

9

.

5

'

2

1

'

2

7

'

1

6

'

2

2

'

1" = 60'

30 60 120 180

0

20160.00

SEPT. 18, 2020

S
C

E
N

I
C

 
H

W
Y

 
a

t
 
H

E
N

R
Y

 
C

L
O

W
E

R

A
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

F
O

R

M
E

R
I
T

A
G

E
 
H

O
M

E
S

2
7
0
0
 
C

U
M

B
E

R
L
A

N
D

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

S
U

I
T

E
 
4
0
0

A
T

L
A

N
T

A
,
 
G

E
O

R
G

I
A

 
3
0
3
3
9

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
9
1
2
-
2
2
2
-
5
6
4
6

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

N
E

L
L
V

I
L
L
E

,

 
G

W
I
N

N
E

T
T

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,

G
E

O
R

G
I
A

L
A

N
D

 
L
O

T
 
6

5
t
h
 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT:

J
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
1
6
0
0
0
\
D

e
\
C

o
n
c
e
p
t
s
\
Z

o
n
i
n
g
\
2
0
1
6
0
.
0
0
-
S

i
t
e
-
Z

o
n
e
-
1
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
J
o
n
H

o
w

a
r
d

 
-
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0
 
6
:
4
3
 
P

M

DESCRIPTIONNO. BYDATE

GEORGIA WEST ZONE

GRID NORTH

SHEET

"
W

E
 
P

R
O

V
I
D

E
 
S

O
L

U
T

I
O

N
S

"

REVISIONS:

THIS SEAL IS ONLY VALID IF COUNTER SIGNED

AND DATED WITH AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE.

GSWCC LEVEL II DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
CERTIFICATION # 0000059389 EXP. 10/28/2021

R

Knowwhat'sbelow.
Callbefore you dig.

www.Georgia811.com

N

SITE LOCATION

MASTER

REZONING PLAN

Z1

24 HOUR CONTACT:

RAY RICHARD

912-222-5646

FEMA FIRM MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION

OPEN SPACE

SITE DATA:

SITE AREA 14.724 ACRES

ZONING

EXISTING ZONING BG

PROPOSED ZONING R-TH

ZONING JURISDICTION
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

USE CALCULATIONS

NET LOT AREA 14.724 ACRES

EXTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD 50 FEET

SIDE YARD 40 FEET

REAR YARD 40 FEET

INTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD

10 FEET (EXCLUDING PORCHES)

SIDE YARD

0 FEET (MIN. 20' SEPARATION BETWEEN END

UNIT BLDGS.)

REAR YARD 30 FEET

MAX. BUILDING HEIGHT 35 FEET

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

24' X 56' FRONT LOADED TOWNHOMES 101 UNITS

TOTAL SITE DENSITY PROVIDED 6.859 UPA

MAX. SITE DENSITY ALLOWED 8.0 UPA

OPEN SPACE CALCULATIONS

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED
2.945 ACRES (20% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

50% OF STREAM BUFFER AREA

0.685 ACRES (1.37 ACRES X 50%)

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

4.9 ACRES (33.3% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

5.585 ACRES (37.9% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

MIN. PARKING REQUIRED
202 SPACES (2 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

PARKING PROVIDED

303 SPACES (2 GARAGE + 1 DRIVEWAY SPACE)

GUEST PARKING PROVIDED 33 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED

336 SPACES (3.3 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT:

NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE 1 STORY WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTP 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC 2X2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH UW1 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH=1009.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WMRK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELIA SANTIAGO ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-91 DB.54016 PG.603 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRICIA HARRIS TAX ID. 5-7-90 DB.34995 PG.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD L. ADCOX TAX ID. 5-7-89 DB.50239 PG.176 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDJEN ENTERPRISES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-3 DB.51463 PG.412 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AOK PROPERTIES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-452 DB.57119 PG.405 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA DOT R/W FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1018.64 IN=1013.13(A) IN=1013.25(B) OUT=1013.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1020.02 OUT=1014.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1027.52 IN=1021.77(A) IN=1022.16(B) OUT=1021.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1034.25 SEALED

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1033.74 IN=1028.34 OUT=1028.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1032.27 IN=1026.67(A) IN=1026.87(B) OUT=1026.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1039.50 OUT=10134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1040.49 IN=1034.93 OUT=1034.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.12 IN=1037.24(A) IN=1037.34(B) OUT=1036.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.24 IN=1038.58 OUT=1038.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.50 IN=1039.24(A) IN=1039.23(B) OUT=1039.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.77 IN=1038.34 OUT=1038.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1045.51 IN=1039.02 OUT=1038.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1053.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1048.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.844 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIAN J. JUHAN TAX ID. 5-6-2 DB.56791 PG.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET IRON PIN & CAP  ELEV. = 1061.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET PK NAIL  ELEV. = 1036.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIJAD NUMANOVIC ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-87 DB.41223 PG.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA. HWY. 124 A.K.A. SCENIC HWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH LAKE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRITT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:1400051.13 E:2339632.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH TOP=1000.10 IN=995.25 OUT=995.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
(868.96)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N31°56'20"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N58°21'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(654.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S30°30'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°00'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(57.93)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S42°11'28"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S39°26'00"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(47.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(159.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°34'46"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(388.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720.08)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIE BELLE BRODNAX  TAX ID. 5-6-4A DB.30267 PG.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.880 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RAIL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW 3X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP OHW40 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1015.99 IN=1010.18 OUT=1009.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1016.16 IN=1009.36 OUT=1009.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1014.17 IN=1009.46 OUT=1009.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1014.41 IN=1008.38(A) IN=1008.20(B) IN=1007.60(C) OUT=1007.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'X4' BOX CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S77°27'46"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(637.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S25°03'37"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=1991.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S38°47'57"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.42)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S27°41'09"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=140.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=2024.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=140.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N52°24'06"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(171.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S37°36'50"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(322.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N28°47'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(514.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28°23'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
205.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF SEDIMENT BASINS GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=995.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=994.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INV=994.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA LIMIT OF REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA FLOOD ZONE AE (ZONE WITHOUT BASE FLOOR ELEVATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
This drawing is the property of Planners and Engineers Collaborative and is not to be copied in whole or in part. It is not to be used on any other project and is to be returned upon request.   Planners and Engineers Collaborative.Planners and Engineers Collaborative.

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 34393

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL



ORD 2021-05     #LUP 20-03  Page 7 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “B’ 
 



ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE AE

ZONE AE

FLOODWAY

ZONE AE

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

 10

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25

 26

 27

 28

 29

 30

 31

 32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

4

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

FULL ACCESS

ENTRANCE/EXIT

STORMWATER

FACILITY

POCKET

PARK

DOG

PARK

OUTDOOR

LIVING SPACE

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

MAIL

KIOSK

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

50' UNDISTURBED BUFFER

75' IMPERVIOUS BUFFER

5

0

'

 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

7

5

'

 

I

M

P

E

R

V

I

O

U

S

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

75

76

77

78

79

45

44

11

2

2

.

6

4

'

2

1

.

5

'

1

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

3

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

1

0

'

2

4

'

9

5

'

2

1

'

2

7

'

1

6

'

2

2

'

1" = 60'

30 60 120 180

0

20160.00

SEPT. 18, 2020

S
C

E
N

I
C

 
H

W
Y

 
a

t
 
H

E
N

R
Y

 
C

L
O

W
E

R

A
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

F
O

R

M
E

R
I
T

A
G

E
 
H

O
M

E
S

2
7
0
0
 
C

U
M

B
E

R
L
A

N
D

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

S
U

I
T

E
 
4
0
0

A
T

L
A

N
T

A
,
 
G

E
O

R
G

I
A

 
3
0
3
3
9

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
9
1
2
-
2
2
2
-
5
6
4
6

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

N
E

L
L
V

I
L
L
E

,

 
G

W
I
N

N
E

T
T

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,

G
E

O
R

G
I
A

L
A

N
D

 
L
O

T
 
6

5
t
h
 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT:

J
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
1
6
0
0
0
\
D

e
\
C

o
n
c
e
p
t
s
\
Z

o
n
i
n
g
\
2
0
1
6
0
.
0
0
-
S

i
t
e
-
Z

o
n
e
-
3
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
K

W
o
o
d

 
-
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
1
 
7
:
4
7
 
P

M

DESCRIPTIONNO. BYDATE

GEORGIA WEST ZONE

GRID NORTH

SHEET

"
W

E
 
P

R
O

V
I
D

E
 
S

O
L

U
T

I
O

N
S

"

REVISIONS:

THIS SEAL IS ONLY VALID IF COUNTER SIGNED

AND DATED WITH AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE.

GSWCC LEVEL II DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
CERTIFICATION # 0000059389 EXP. 10/28/2021

R

Knowwhat'sbelow.
Callbefore you dig.

www.Georgia811.com

N

SITE LOCATION

MASTER

REZONING PLAN

Z1

24 HOUR CONTACT:

RAY RICHARD

912-222-5646

FEMA FIRM MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION

OPEN SPACE

SITE DATA:

SITE AREA 14.724 ACRES

ZONING

EXISTING ZONING BG

PROPOSED ZONING R-TH

ZONING JURISDICTION
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

USE CALCULATIONS

NET LOT AREA 14.724 ACRES

EXTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD 50 FEET

SIDE YARD 40 FEET

REAR YARD 40 FEET

INTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD

10 FEET (EXCLUDING PORCHES)

SIDE YARD

0 FEET (MIN. 20' SEPARATION BETWEEN END

UNIT BLDGS.)

REAR YARD 30 FEET

MAX. BUILDING HEIGHT 35 FEET

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

24' X 56' FRONT LOADED TOWNHOMES 90 UNITS

TOTAL SITE DENSITY PROVIDED 6.11 UPA

MAX. SITE DENSITY ALLOWED 8.0 UPA

OPEN SPACE CALCULATIONS

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED
2.945 ACRES (20% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

50% OF STREAM BUFFER AREA

0.685 ACRES (1.37 ACRES X 50%)

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

4.87 ACRES (33.1% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

6.24 ACRES (42.38% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA PROVIDED

2.36 ACRES (16% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

MIN. PARKING REQUIRED
180 SPACES (2 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

PARKING PROVIDED

270 SPACES (2 GARAGE + 1 DRIVEWAY SPACE)

GUEST PARKING PROVIDED 33 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED

303 SPACES (3.3 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT:

NTS

3/7/21*1 kw Reduce Density &

Revise Entry Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE 1 STORY WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTP 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC 2X2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH UW1 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH=1009.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WMRK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELIA SANTIAGO ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-91 DB.54016 PG.603 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRICIA HARRIS TAX ID. 5-7-90 DB.34995 PG.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD L. ADCOX TAX ID. 5-7-89 DB.50239 PG.176 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDJEN ENTERPRISES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-3 DB.51463 PG.412 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AOK PROPERTIES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-452 DB.57119 PG.405 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA DOT R/W FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1018.64 IN=1013.13(A) IN=1013.25(B) OUT=1013.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1020.02 OUT=1014.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1027.52 IN=1021.77(A) IN=1022.16(B) OUT=1021.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1034.25 SEALED

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1033.74 IN=1028.34 OUT=1028.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1032.27 IN=1026.67(A) IN=1026.87(B) OUT=1026.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1039.50 OUT=10134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1040.49 IN=1034.93 OUT=1034.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.12 IN=1037.24(A) IN=1037.34(B) OUT=1036.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.24 IN=1038.58 OUT=1038.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.50 IN=1039.24(A) IN=1039.23(B) OUT=1039.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.77 IN=1038.34 OUT=1038.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1045.51 IN=1039.02 OUT=1038.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1053.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1048.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.844 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIAN J. JUHAN TAX ID. 5-6-2 DB.56791 PG.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET IRON PIN & CAP  ELEV. = 1061.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET PK NAIL  ELEV. = 1036.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIJAD NUMANOVIC ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-87 DB.41223 PG.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA. HWY. 124 A.K.A. SCENIC HWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH LAKE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRITT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:1400051.13 E:2339632.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH TOP=1000.10 IN=995.25 OUT=995.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
(868.96)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N31°56'20"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N58°21'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(654.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S30°30'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°00'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(57.93)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S42°11'28"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S39°26'00"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(47.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(159.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°34'46"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(388.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720.08)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIE BELLE BRODNAX  TAX ID. 5-6-4A DB.30267 PG.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.880 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RAIL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW 3X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP OHW40 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1015.99 IN=1010.18 OUT=1009.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1016.16 IN=1009.36 OUT=1009.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1014.17 IN=1009.46 OUT=1009.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1014.41 IN=1008.38(A) IN=1008.20(B) IN=1007.60(C) OUT=1007.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'X4' BOX CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S77°27'46"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(637.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S25°03'37"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=1991.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S38°47'57"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.42)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S27°41'09"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=140.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=2024.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=140.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N52°24'06"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(171.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S37°36'50"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(322.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N28°47'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(514.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28°23'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
205.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF SEDIMENT BASINS GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=995.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=994.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INV=994.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA LIMIT OF REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA FLOOD ZONE AE (ZONE WITHOUT BASE FLOOR ELEVATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
This drawing is the property of Planners and Engineers Collaborative and is not to be copied in whole or in part. It is not to be used on any other project and is to be returned upon request.   Planners and Engineers Collaborative.Planners and Engineers Collaborative.

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 34393

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 1 of 9 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-04 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 14.724± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 6 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, 
GEORGIA, 2465 SCENIC HIGHWAY S., SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO ADD 
CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO APPROVE VARIANCES; TO 
PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 20-03 
 
SIZE: 14.724 Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2465 Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCELS: R5006 002 and R5006 003 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: OP (Office-Professional) District 
 and BG (General Business) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: R-TH (Single-family Residential 
 Townhome) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 90-Unit Single-family Residential 
 Townhome Community 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Crawford F. Juhan, Jr., Snellville, Georgia 
 Edjen Enterprises, LLC, Longboat Key, FL 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Meritage Homes of Georgia 
 c/o Mitch Peevy 
 770-361-8444 or MitchPeevy@gmail.com 
 BG (General Business) District 
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and, 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 2 of 9 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 14.724± acre tract of land located at 2465 

Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcels R5006 002 and 5006 003) for a 90-

unit single-family attached (townhome) development; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

14.724± acre tract of land as shown on the site plan entitled “Scenic Hwy at Henry Clower 

a Master Planned Residential Development for Meritage Homes”, dated 9-18-2020 and 

revised 3-7-2021 (received 3-8-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference is hereby changed from OP (Office-Professional) 

District and BG (General Business) District to R-TH (Single-family Residential 

Townhome) District. This action is subject to the attachment of the following conditions 

(1-11): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the rezoning site plan 

entitled “Scenic Hwy at Henry Clower”, dated 9-18-2020 and revised 3-7-2021 

(received 3-8-2021), with modifications permitted to meet conditions of zoning 

or State, County, and City regulations.   Substantial variation from the rezoning 

site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and Development will 

require Mayor and Council approval. 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 3 of 9 
 

 

2. Single-family attached dwellings shall not exceed a density of 6.12 units per 

acre. 

3. A Property Owner’s Association shall be established for the continuous 

maintenance of buffers, open space, stormwater detention facility, and 

recreation areas. 

4. The development and townhome units are to be deed restricted to at least 90% 

owner-occupied fee-simple single-family ownership while the remaining 10% 

of the townhome units may be used as non-owner occupied (rental) units. This 

condition must be incorporated into the Property Owner’s Association 

documents prior to the release of any certificates of occupancy.  

5. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited. 

6. Continue sidewalk connectivity within the existing public right-of-way where 

there are no sidewalks between Tract 1 and Tract 2. 

7. Developer shall erect a 6-foot tall vinyl coated chain link or wooden privacy 

fence around the perimeter of the development, excluding the front of the 

property. 

8. Developer shall provide a permanent berm, minimum two-foot in height, along 

280± feet on the northern property line where abutting Lanier Forest 

subdivision (parcels 5007 091; 5007 090; 5007 089; 5007 091 (part of); and 

5007 088 (part of). Said berm shall be planted per a buffer and landscape plan 

approved by the Director of Planning and Development so as to provide a dense 

visual screen upon maturity of the plantings.   



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 4 of 9 
 

9. A 25-foot landscape buffer shall be required along the western and northern 

property lines and front portion of the eastern property line and extending up to 

Unit-90. 

10. In consideration of approval of the variance from Sec. 9.5B(4)(6)(a) of the 

Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall be required to utilize one sixteen-foot 

(16’) wide insulated carriage style garage door for each townhome dwelling as 

per Exhibit “B”. Garage doors may not be colored in ‘Bright White”. 

11. All driveways shall be a minimum of twenty-two feet (22’) in length, measured 

from the front of the garage door to the leading edge of the sidewalk (edge 

closest to dwelling), and shall be wide enough to accommodate the parallel 

parking of two vehicles. 

Section 2.  The requested variance from Sec. 9.5B(4)(6)(a) of the Zoning Ordinance 

requiring front-loading garages for single-family attached dwellings (townhomes), be 

located a minimum of ten (10) feet behind the plane of the front façade of the principal 

building is approved, subject to Condition #11 (above). 

Section 3.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor and 

Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by the 

Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City of 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 5 of 9 
 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy 

between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia 

approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 4. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 5.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 6 of 9 
 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 6.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City 

of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are hereby made 

applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 Section 7.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 8.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 7 of 9 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 8 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
  



ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE AE

ZONE AE

FLOODWAY

ZONE AE

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

 10

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25

 26

 27

 28

 29

 30

 31

 32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

4

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

FULL ACCESS

ENTRANCE/EXIT

STORMWATER

FACILITY

POCKET

PARK

DOG

PARK

OUTDOOR

LIVING SPACE

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

MAIL

KIOSK

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

50' UNDISTURBED BUFFER

75' IMPERVIOUS BUFFER

5

0

'

 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

7

5

'

 

I

M

P

E

R

V

I

O

U

S

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

75

76

77

78

79

45

44

11

2

2

.

6

4

'

2

1

.

5

'

1

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

3

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

1

0

'

2

4

'

9

5

'

2

1

'

2

7

'

1

6

'

2

2

'

1" = 60'

30 60 120 180

0

20160.00

SEPT. 18, 2020

S
C

E
N

I
C

 
H

W
Y

 
a

t
 
H

E
N

R
Y

 
C

L
O

W
E

R

A
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

F
O

R

M
E

R
I
T

A
G

E
 
H

O
M

E
S

2
7
0
0
 
C

U
M

B
E

R
L
A

N
D

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

S
U

I
T

E
 
4
0
0

A
T

L
A

N
T

A
,
 
G

E
O

R
G

I
A

 
3
0
3
3
9

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
9
1
2
-
2
2
2
-
5
6
4
6

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

N
E

L
L
V

I
L
L
E

,

 
G

W
I
N

N
E

T
T

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,

G
E

O
R

G
I
A

L
A

N
D

 
L
O

T
 
6

5
t
h
 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT:

J
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
1
6
0
0
0
\
D

e
\
C

o
n
c
e
p
t
s
\
Z

o
n
i
n
g
\
2
0
1
6
0
.
0
0
-
S

i
t
e
-
Z

o
n
e
-
3
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
K

W
o
o
d

 
-
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
1
 
7
:
4
7
 
P

M

DESCRIPTIONNO. BYDATE

GEORGIA WEST ZONE

GRID NORTH

SHEET

"
W

E
 
P

R
O

V
I
D

E
 
S

O
L

U
T

I
O

N
S

"

REVISIONS:

THIS SEAL IS ONLY VALID IF COUNTER SIGNED

AND DATED WITH AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE.

GSWCC LEVEL II DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
CERTIFICATION # 0000059389 EXP. 10/28/2021

R

Knowwhat'sbelow.
Callbefore you dig.

www.Georgia811.com

N

SITE LOCATION

MASTER

REZONING PLAN

Z1

24 HOUR CONTACT:

RAY RICHARD

912-222-5646

FEMA FIRM MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION

OPEN SPACE

SITE DATA:

SITE AREA 14.724 ACRES

ZONING

EXISTING ZONING BG

PROPOSED ZONING R-TH

ZONING JURISDICTION
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

USE CALCULATIONS

NET LOT AREA 14.724 ACRES

EXTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD 50 FEET

SIDE YARD 40 FEET

REAR YARD 40 FEET

INTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD

10 FEET (EXCLUDING PORCHES)

SIDE YARD

0 FEET (MIN. 20' SEPARATION BETWEEN END

UNIT BLDGS.)

REAR YARD 30 FEET

MAX. BUILDING HEIGHT 35 FEET

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

24' X 56' FRONT LOADED TOWNHOMES 90 UNITS

TOTAL SITE DENSITY PROVIDED 6.11 UPA

MAX. SITE DENSITY ALLOWED 8.0 UPA

OPEN SPACE CALCULATIONS

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED
2.945 ACRES (20% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

50% OF STREAM BUFFER AREA

0.685 ACRES (1.37 ACRES X 50%)

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

4.87 ACRES (33.1% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

6.24 ACRES (42.38% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA PROVIDED

2.36 ACRES (16% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

MIN. PARKING REQUIRED
180 SPACES (2 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

PARKING PROVIDED

270 SPACES (2 GARAGE + 1 DRIVEWAY SPACE)

GUEST PARKING PROVIDED 33 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED

303 SPACES (3.3 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT:

NTS

3/7/21*1 kw Reduce Density &

Revise Entry Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE 1 STORY WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTP 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC 2X2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH UW1 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH=1009.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WMRK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELIA SANTIAGO ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-91 DB.54016 PG.603 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRICIA HARRIS TAX ID. 5-7-90 DB.34995 PG.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD L. ADCOX TAX ID. 5-7-89 DB.50239 PG.176 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDJEN ENTERPRISES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-3 DB.51463 PG.412 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AOK PROPERTIES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-452 DB.57119 PG.405 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA DOT R/W FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1018.64 IN=1013.13(A) IN=1013.25(B) OUT=1013.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1020.02 OUT=1014.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1027.52 IN=1021.77(A) IN=1022.16(B) OUT=1021.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1034.25 SEALED

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1033.74 IN=1028.34 OUT=1028.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1032.27 IN=1026.67(A) IN=1026.87(B) OUT=1026.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1039.50 OUT=10134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1040.49 IN=1034.93 OUT=1034.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.12 IN=1037.24(A) IN=1037.34(B) OUT=1036.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.24 IN=1038.58 OUT=1038.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.50 IN=1039.24(A) IN=1039.23(B) OUT=1039.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.77 IN=1038.34 OUT=1038.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1045.51 IN=1039.02 OUT=1038.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1053.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1048.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.844 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIAN J. JUHAN TAX ID. 5-6-2 DB.56791 PG.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET IRON PIN & CAP  ELEV. = 1061.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET PK NAIL  ELEV. = 1036.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIJAD NUMANOVIC ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-87 DB.41223 PG.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA. HWY. 124 A.K.A. SCENIC HWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH LAKE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRITT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:1400051.13 E:2339632.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH TOP=1000.10 IN=995.25 OUT=995.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
(868.96)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N31°56'20"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N58°21'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(654.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S30°30'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°00'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(57.93)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S42°11'28"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S39°26'00"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(47.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(159.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°34'46"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(388.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720.08)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIE BELLE BRODNAX  TAX ID. 5-6-4A DB.30267 PG.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.880 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RAIL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW 3X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP OHW40 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1015.99 IN=1010.18 OUT=1009.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1016.16 IN=1009.36 OUT=1009.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1014.17 IN=1009.46 OUT=1009.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1014.41 IN=1008.38(A) IN=1008.20(B) IN=1007.60(C) OUT=1007.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'X4' BOX CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S77°27'46"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(637.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S25°03'37"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=1991.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S38°47'57"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.42)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S27°41'09"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=140.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=2024.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=140.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N52°24'06"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(171.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S37°36'50"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(322.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N28°47'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(514.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28°23'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
205.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF SEDIMENT BASINS GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=995.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=994.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INV=994.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA LIMIT OF REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA FLOOD ZONE AE (ZONE WITHOUT BASE FLOOR ELEVATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
This drawing is the property of Planners and Engineers Collaborative and is not to be copied in whole or in part. It is not to be used on any other project and is to be returned upon request.   Planners and Engineers Collaborative.Planners and Engineers Collaborative.

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 34393

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 9 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 





ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 1 of 8 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-04 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 14.724± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 6 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, 
GEORGIA, 2465 SCENIC HIGHWAY S., SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO ADD 
CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO DENY VARIANCES; TO 
PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 20-03 
 
SIZE: 14.724 Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2465 Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCELS: R5006 002 and R5006 003 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: OP (Office-Professional) District 
 and BG (General Business) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: R-TH (Single-family Residential 
 Townhome) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 90-Unit Single-family Residential 
 Townhome Community 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Crawford F. Juhan, Jr., Snellville, Georgia 
 Edjen Enterprises, LLC, Longboat Key, FL 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Meritage Homes of Georgia 
 c/o Mitch Peevy 
 770-361-8444 or MitchPeevy@gmail.com 
 BG (General Business) District 
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and, 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 2 of 8 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 14.724± acre tract of land located at 2465 

Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcels R5006 002 and 5006 003) for a 90-

unit single-family attached (townhome) development; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

14.724± acre tract of land as shown on the site plan entitled “Scenic Hwy at Henry Clower 

a Master Planned Residential Development for Meritage Homes”, dated 9-18-2020 and 

revised 3-7-2021 (received 3-8-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference is hereby changed from OP (Office-Professional) 

District and BG (General Business) District to R-TH (Single-family Residential 

Townhome) District. This action is subject to the attachment of the following conditions 

(1-9): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the rezoning site plan 

entitled “Scenic Hwy at Henry Clower”, dated 9-18-2020 and revised 3-7-2021 

(received 3-8-2021), with modifications permitted to meet conditions of zoning 

or State, County, and City regulations.   Substantial variation from the rezoning 

site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and Development will 

require Mayor and Council approval. 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 3 of 8 
 

2. Single-family attached dwellings shall not exceed a density of 6.12 units per 

acre. 

3. A Property Owner’s Association shall be established for the continuous 

maintenance of buffers, open space, stormwater detention facility, and 

recreation areas. 

4. The development and townhome units are to be deed restricted to at least 90% 

owner-occupied fee-simple single-family ownership while the remaining 10% 

of the townhome units may be used as non-owner occupied (rental) units. This 

condition must be incorporated into the Property Owner’s Association 

documents prior to the release of any certificates of occupancy.  

5. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited. 

6. Continue sidewalk connectivity within the existing public right-of-way where 

there are no sidewalks between Tract 1 and Tract 2. 

7. Developer shall erect a 6-foot tall vinyl coated chain link or wooden privacy 

fence around the perimeter of the development, excluding the front of the 

property. 

8. Developer shall provide a permanent berm, minimum two-foot in height, along 

280± feet on the northern property line where abutting Lanier Forest 

subdivision (parcels 5007 091; 5007 090; 5007 089; 5007 091 (part of); and 

5007 088 (part of). Said berm shall be planted per a buffer and landscape plan 

approved by the Director of Planning and Development so as to provide a dense 

visual screen upon maturity of the plantings.  



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 4 of 8 
 

9. A 25-foot landscape buffer shall be required along the western and northern 

property lines and front portion of the eastern property line and extending up to 

Unit-90. 

Section 2.  The requested variance from Sec. 9.5B(4)(6)(a) of the Zoning Ordinance 

requiring front-loading garages for single-family attached dwellings (townhomes), be 

located a minimum of ten (10) feet behind the plane of the front façade of the principal 

building is denied. 

Section 3.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official Zoning 

Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor and 

Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by the 

Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy 

between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia 

approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 4. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 5.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 5 of 8 
 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 6.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City 

of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are hereby made 

applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 Section 7.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 6 of 8 
 

 Section 8.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 7 of 8 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 8 of 8 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-04 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 14.724± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 6 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, 
GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2465 SCENIC HIGHWAY S., SNELLVILLE, 
GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 20-03 
 
SIZE: 14.724 Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2465 Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia 
 
TAX PARCELS: R5006 002 and R5006 003 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: OP (Office-Professional) District 
 and BG (General Business) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: R-TH (Single-family Residential 
 Townhome) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 101-Unit Single-family Residential 
 Townhome Community 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Crawford F. Juhan, Jr., Snellville, Georgia 
 Edjen Enterprises, LLC, Longboat Key, FL 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Meritage Homes of Georgia 
 c/o Mitch Peevy 
 770-361-8444 or MitchPeevy@gmail.com 
 BG (General Business) District 
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and, 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 2 of 7 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny RZ 20-04, which requested to amend the official zoning map as it applies to the 

14.724± acre tract of land located at 2465 Scenic Highway S., Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcels R5006 002 and 5006 003) for a 101-unit single-family attached (townhome) 

development, later revised and reduced by 10-units for a 90-unit single-family attached 

(townhome) development; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change to the Official Zoning Map 

for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 14.724± acre tract of land as shown on the site 

plan entitled “Scenic Hwy at Henry Clower a Master Planned Residential Development for 

Meritage Homes”, sealed and dated 9-18-2020 (stamped received 10-9-2020) in Exhibit 

“A”, and as shown on the 3-7-2021 revised site plan entitled “Scenic Hwy at Henry Clower 

a Master Planned Residential Development for Meritage Homes”, received 3-8-2021 in 

Exhibit “B”, copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is 

hereby denied. 

 Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council 

that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 3 of 7 
 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 

or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor 

and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City 

of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are hereby made 

applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 4 of 7 
 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein. 

 
 
 

 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 5 of 7 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 6 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
  



ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE AE

ZONE AE

FLOODWAY

ZONE AE

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

 10

 11

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25

 26

 27

 28

 29

 30

 31

 32

 33

 34

 35

 36

 37

 38

 39

 40

 41

 42

 43

 44

 45

 46

 47

 48

 49

 50

 51

 52

 53

 54

 55

 56

 57

 58

 59

 60

 61

 62

 63

 64

 65

 66

 67

 68

 69

 70

 71

 72

 73

 74

 75

 76

 77

 78

 79

 80

 81

 82

 83

 84

 85

 86

 87

 88

 89

 90

 91

 92

 93

 94

 95

 96

 97

 98

 99

 100

 101

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

4

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

FULL ACCESS

ENTRANCE/EXIT

STORMWATER

FACILITY

POCKET

PARK

DOG

PARK

OUTDOOR

LIVING SPACE

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

MAIL

KIOSK

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

50' UNDISTURBED BUFFER

75' IMPERVIOUS BUFFER

5

0

'

 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

7

5

'

 

I

M

P

E

R

V

I

O

U

S

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

1

'
2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

1

.

4

3

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

1

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

3

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

1

0

'

2

4

'

9

5

'

2

9

.

5

'

2

1

'

2

7

'

1

6

'

2

2

'

1" = 60'

30 60 120 180

0

20160.00

SEPT. 18, 2020

S
C

E
N

I
C

 
H

W
Y

 
a

t
 
H

E
N

R
Y

 
C

L
O

W
E

R

A
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

F
O

R

M
E

R
I
T

A
G

E
 
H

O
M

E
S

2
7
0
0
 
C

U
M

B
E

R
L
A

N
D

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

S
U

I
T

E
 
4
0
0

A
T

L
A

N
T

A
,
 
G

E
O

R
G

I
A

 
3
0
3
3
9

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
9
1
2
-
2
2
2
-
5
6
4
6

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

N
E

L
L
V

I
L
L
E

,

 
G

W
I
N

N
E

T
T

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,

G
E

O
R

G
I
A

L
A

N
D

 
L
O

T
 
6

5
t
h
 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT:

J
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
1
6
0
0
0
\
D

e
\
C

o
n
c
e
p
t
s
\
Z

o
n
i
n
g
\
2
0
1
6
0
.
0
0
-
S

i
t
e
-
Z

o
n
e
-
1
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
J
o
n
H

o
w

a
r
d

 
-
 
0
9
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0
 
6
:
4
3
 
P

M

DESCRIPTIONNO. BYDATE

GEORGIA WEST ZONE

GRID NORTH

SHEET

"
W

E
 
P

R
O

V
I
D

E
 
S

O
L

U
T

I
O

N
S

"

REVISIONS:

THIS SEAL IS ONLY VALID IF COUNTER SIGNED

AND DATED WITH AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE.

GSWCC LEVEL II DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
CERTIFICATION # 0000059389 EXP. 10/28/2021

R

Knowwhat'sbelow.
Callbefore you dig.

www.Georgia811.com

N

SITE LOCATION

MASTER

REZONING PLAN

Z1

24 HOUR CONTACT:

RAY RICHARD

912-222-5646

FEMA FIRM MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION

OPEN SPACE

SITE DATA:

SITE AREA 14.724 ACRES

ZONING

EXISTING ZONING BG

PROPOSED ZONING R-TH

ZONING JURISDICTION
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

USE CALCULATIONS

NET LOT AREA 14.724 ACRES

EXTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD 50 FEET

SIDE YARD 40 FEET

REAR YARD 40 FEET

INTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD

10 FEET (EXCLUDING PORCHES)

SIDE YARD

0 FEET (MIN. 20' SEPARATION BETWEEN END

UNIT BLDGS.)

REAR YARD 30 FEET

MAX. BUILDING HEIGHT 35 FEET

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

24' X 56' FRONT LOADED TOWNHOMES 101 UNITS

TOTAL SITE DENSITY PROVIDED 6.859 UPA

MAX. SITE DENSITY ALLOWED 8.0 UPA

OPEN SPACE CALCULATIONS

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED
2.945 ACRES (20% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

50% OF STREAM BUFFER AREA

0.685 ACRES (1.37 ACRES X 50%)

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

4.9 ACRES (33.3% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

5.585 ACRES (37.9% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

MIN. PARKING REQUIRED
202 SPACES (2 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

PARKING PROVIDED

303 SPACES (2 GARAGE + 1 DRIVEWAY SPACE)

GUEST PARKING PROVIDED 33 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED

336 SPACES (3.3 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT:

NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE 1 STORY WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTP 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC 2X2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH UW1 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH=1009.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WMRK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELIA SANTIAGO ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-91 DB.54016 PG.603 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRICIA HARRIS TAX ID. 5-7-90 DB.34995 PG.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD L. ADCOX TAX ID. 5-7-89 DB.50239 PG.176 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDJEN ENTERPRISES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-3 DB.51463 PG.412 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AOK PROPERTIES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-452 DB.57119 PG.405 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA DOT R/W FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1018.64 IN=1013.13(A) IN=1013.25(B) OUT=1013.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1020.02 OUT=1014.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1027.52 IN=1021.77(A) IN=1022.16(B) OUT=1021.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1034.25 SEALED

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1033.74 IN=1028.34 OUT=1028.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1032.27 IN=1026.67(A) IN=1026.87(B) OUT=1026.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1039.50 OUT=10134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1040.49 IN=1034.93 OUT=1034.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.12 IN=1037.24(A) IN=1037.34(B) OUT=1036.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.24 IN=1038.58 OUT=1038.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.50 IN=1039.24(A) IN=1039.23(B) OUT=1039.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.77 IN=1038.34 OUT=1038.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1045.51 IN=1039.02 OUT=1038.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1053.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1048.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.844 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIAN J. JUHAN TAX ID. 5-6-2 DB.56791 PG.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET IRON PIN & CAP  ELEV. = 1061.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET PK NAIL  ELEV. = 1036.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIJAD NUMANOVIC ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-87 DB.41223 PG.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA. HWY. 124 A.K.A. SCENIC HWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH LAKE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRITT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:1400051.13 E:2339632.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH TOP=1000.10 IN=995.25 OUT=995.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
(868.96)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N31°56'20"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N58°21'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(654.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S30°30'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°00'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(57.93)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S42°11'28"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S39°26'00"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(47.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(159.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°34'46"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(388.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720.08)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIE BELLE BRODNAX  TAX ID. 5-6-4A DB.30267 PG.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.880 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RAIL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW 3X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP OHW40 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1015.99 IN=1010.18 OUT=1009.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1016.16 IN=1009.36 OUT=1009.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1014.17 IN=1009.46 OUT=1009.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1014.41 IN=1008.38(A) IN=1008.20(B) IN=1007.60(C) OUT=1007.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'X4' BOX CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S77°27'46"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(637.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S25°03'37"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=1991.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S38°47'57"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.42)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S27°41'09"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=140.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=2024.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=140.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N52°24'06"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(171.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S37°36'50"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(322.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N28°47'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(514.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28°23'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
205.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF SEDIMENT BASINS GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=995.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=994.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INV=994.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA LIMIT OF REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA FLOOD ZONE AE (ZONE WITHOUT BASE FLOOR ELEVATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
This drawing is the property of Planners and Engineers Collaborative and is not to be copied in whole or in part. It is not to be used on any other project and is to be returned upon request.   Planners and Engineers Collaborative.Planners and Engineers Collaborative.

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 34393

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL



ORD 2021-04     #RZ 20-04  Page 7 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 



ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE AE

ZONE AE

FLOODWAY

ZONE AE

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

 10

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25

 26

 27

 28

 29

 30

 31

 32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

4

0

'

 

S

I

D

E

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

5

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

/

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

S

T

R

I

P

4

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

FULL ACCESS

ENTRANCE/EXIT

STORMWATER

FACILITY

POCKET

PARK

DOG

PARK

OUTDOOR

LIVING SPACE

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

MAIL

KIOSK

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

2

4

'

 

D

R

I

V

E

 

W

/

 

5

0

'

 

A

C

C

E

S

S

&

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

S

M

T

.

50' UNDISTURBED BUFFER

75' IMPERVIOUS BUFFER

5

0

'

 

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

7

5

'

 

I

M

P

E

R

V

I

O

U

S

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

2

1

'

2

2

'

2

1

'

75

76

77

78

79

45

44

11

2

2

.

6

4

'

2

1

.

5

'

1

0

'

 

F

R

O

N

T

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

3

0

'

 

R

E

A

R

 

Y

A

R

D

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

1

0

'

2

4

'

9

5

'

2

1

'

2

7

'

1

6

'

2

2

'

1" = 60'

30 60 120 180

0

20160.00

SEPT. 18, 2020

S
C

E
N

I
C

 
H

W
Y

 
a

t
 
H

E
N

R
Y

 
C

L
O

W
E

R

A
 
M

A
S

T
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

F
O

R

M
E

R
I
T

A
G

E
 
H

O
M

E
S

2
7
0
0
 
C

U
M

B
E

R
L
A

N
D

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

S
U

I
T

E
 
4
0
0

A
T

L
A

N
T

A
,
 
G

E
O

R
G

I
A

 
3
0
3
3
9

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
9
1
2
-
2
2
2
-
5
6
4
6

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
S

N
E

L
L
V

I
L
L
E

,

 
G

W
I
N

N
E

T
T

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,

G
E

O
R

G
I
A

L
A

N
D

 
L
O

T
 
6

5
t
h
 
D

I
S

T
R

I
C

T

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT:

J
:
\
2
0
2
0
\
2
0
1
6
0
0
0
\
D

e
\
C

o
n
c
e
p
t
s
\
Z

o
n
i
n
g
\
2
0
1
6
0
.
0
0
-
S

i
t
e
-
Z

o
n
e
-
3
.
d
w

g
 
-
 
K

W
o
o
d

 
-
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
1
 
7
:
4
7
 
P

M

DESCRIPTIONNO. BYDATE

GEORGIA WEST ZONE

GRID NORTH

SHEET

"
W

E
 
P

R
O

V
I
D

E
 
S

O
L

U
T

I
O

N
S

"

REVISIONS:

THIS SEAL IS ONLY VALID IF COUNTER SIGNED

AND DATED WITH AN ORIGINAL SIGNATURE.

GSWCC LEVEL II DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
CERTIFICATION # 0000059389 EXP. 10/28/2021

R

Knowwhat'sbelow.
Callbefore you dig.

www.Georgia811.com

N

SITE LOCATION

MASTER

REZONING PLAN

Z1

24 HOUR CONTACT:

RAY RICHARD

912-222-5646

FEMA FIRM MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SITE LOCATION

OPEN SPACE

SITE DATA:

SITE AREA 14.724 ACRES

ZONING

EXISTING ZONING BG

PROPOSED ZONING R-TH

ZONING JURISDICTION
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA

USE CALCULATIONS

NET LOT AREA 14.724 ACRES

EXTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD 50 FEET

SIDE YARD 40 FEET

REAR YARD 40 FEET

INTERIOR YARD SETBACK REQUIREMENTS

FRONT YARD

10 FEET (EXCLUDING PORCHES)

SIDE YARD

0 FEET (MIN. 20' SEPARATION BETWEEN END

UNIT BLDGS.)

REAR YARD 30 FEET

MAX. BUILDING HEIGHT 35 FEET

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

24' X 56' FRONT LOADED TOWNHOMES 90 UNITS

TOTAL SITE DENSITY PROVIDED 6.11 UPA

MAX. SITE DENSITY ALLOWED 8.0 UPA

OPEN SPACE CALCULATIONS

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED
2.945 ACRES (20% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

50% OF STREAM BUFFER AREA

0.685 ACRES (1.37 ACRES X 50%)

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

4.87 ACRES (33.1% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED

6.24 ACRES (42.38% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA PROVIDED

2.36 ACRES (16% OF TOTAL SITE AREA)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

MIN. PARKING REQUIRED
180 SPACES (2 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

PARKING PROVIDED

270 SPACES (2 GARAGE + 1 DRIVEWAY SPACE)

GUEST PARKING PROVIDED 33 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED

303 SPACES (3.3 SP/ DWELLING UNIT)

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT:

NTS

3/7/21*1 kw Reduce Density &

Revise Entry Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE 1 STORY WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
G-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTP 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC 2X2

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH UW1 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH=1009.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WMRK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELIA SANTIAGO ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-91 DB.54016 PG.603 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRICIA HARRIS TAX ID. 5-7-90 DB.34995 PG.138 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD L. ADCOX TAX ID. 5-7-89 DB.50239 PG.176 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDJEN ENTERPRISES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-3 DB.51463 PG.412 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AOK PROPERTIES LLC TAX ID. 5-6-452 DB.57119 PG.405 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGIA DOT R/W FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1018.64 IN=1013.13(A) IN=1013.25(B) OUT=1013.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1020.02 OUT=1014.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1027.52 IN=1021.77(A) IN=1022.16(B) OUT=1021.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1034.25 SEALED

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1033.74 IN=1028.34 OUT=1028.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1032.27 IN=1026.67(A) IN=1026.87(B) OUT=1026.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1039.50 OUT=10134.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1040.49 IN=1034.93 OUT=1034.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.12 IN=1037.24(A) IN=1037.34(B) OUT=1036.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1043.24 IN=1038.58 OUT=1038.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.50 IN=1039.24(A) IN=1039.23(B) OUT=1039.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1044.77 IN=1038.34 OUT=1038.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1045.51 IN=1039.02 OUT=1038.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1053.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
FFE=1048.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.844 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIAN J. JUHAN TAX ID. 5-6-2 DB.56791 PG.68 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET IRON PIN & CAP  ELEV. = 1061.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE POINT SET PK NAIL  ELEV. = 1036.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN V. MOONEN TAX ID. 5-7-92 DB.51510 PG.455 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIJAD NUMANOVIC ETAL TAX ID. 5-7-87 DB.41223 PG.63 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA. HWY. 124 A.K.A. SCENIC HWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH LAKE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRITT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"OTP

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R/W PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:1400051.13 E:2339632.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 IPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH TOP=1000.10 IN=995.25 OUT=995.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
(868.96)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N31°56'20"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N58°21'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(654.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S30°30'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°00'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(57.93)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S42°11'28"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S39°26'00"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(47.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(159.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S47°34'46"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(388.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720.08)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LILLIE BELLE BRODNAX  TAX ID. 5-6-4A DB.30267 PG.48 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. LAND LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.880 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RAIL FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GW 3X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP OHW40 BL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1015.99 IN=1010.18 OUT=1009.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1016.16 IN=1009.36 OUT=1009.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWCB TOP=1014.17 IN=1009.46 OUT=1009.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWCB TOP=1014.41 IN=1008.38(A) IN=1008.20(B) IN=1007.60(C) OUT=1007.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'X4' BOX CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S77°27'46"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(637.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S25°03'37"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=1991.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=12.90)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S38°47'57"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.42)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S27°41'09"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ARC=140.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(RAD=2024.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CHORD=140.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N52°24'06"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(171.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S37°36'50"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(322.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N28°47'05"W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(514.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N28°23'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
205.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. & MAINTENANCE OF SLOPES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19) EXCEPTION #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF DRIVES GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. FOR CONST. OF SEDIMENT BASINS GA. DOT R/W MAP NO. NH-078-1(19)

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=995.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INV=994.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT INV=994.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA LIMIT OF REGULATORY FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX. FEMA FLOOD ZONE AE (ZONE WITHOUT BASE FLOOR ELEVATIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
This drawing is the property of Planners and Engineers Collaborative and is not to be copied in whole or in part. It is not to be used on any other project and is to be returned upon request.   Planners and Engineers Collaborative.Planners and Engineers Collaborative.

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 34393

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROFESSIONAL



Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO: The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: March 22, 2021 
 
RE: #RZ 21-01 LUP 21-01 
 
DEVELOPMENT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Subdivision Development 

2.765± Acres at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia 
   
STATUS: Public Hearing (2nd Reading) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Applications to amend the Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Map and Official Zoning Map for a 13-Lot Single-family Detached subdivision 
development on a 2.765± acre property located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, 
Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel 50028 001).  

Financial Impact:  Site Development Permit fees; Building 
Permit fees; Real Property Taxes 

 
Planning Commission 
Meeting: February 23, 2021 
 
Recommendations: 

Case No.  LUP 21-01 RZ 21-01 
Planning 
Department Approval Approval 

Planning 
Commission Approval Approval 

 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings: March 8, 2021 (1st Reading)  

March 22, 2021 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing) 
 
Action requested: Consideration, Public Hearing and Action 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 



 
 
 
 
2.765± Acre Site at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia  
Case #RZ 21-01 LUP 21-01 
March 22, 2021  
Page… 2 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

• #RZ 21-01 Rezoning Application (12-14-2020) 
• #LUP 21-01 Land Use Plan Amendment Application (12-14-2020) 
• Property Boundary Survey and Legal Description (12-09-2020) 
• Rezoning Site Plan (11-23-2020) 
• Sample Floor Plans (12-14-2020) 
• Sample Exterior Elevations (12-14-2020) 
• 2-23-3021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (1-20-

2021) 
• 2-23-2021 Planning Commission Case Report (2-24-2021) 
• Unofficial 2-23-2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes (2-24-

2021) 
• 3-8-2021 & 3-22-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis 

with Planning Commission Report (2-24-2021) 
• Conditions Only Recommendations (2-24-2021) 
• #LUP 21-01 Approval Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #RZ 21-01 Approval Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #LUP 21-01 Denial Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #RZ 21-01 Denial Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021)  

https://www.snellville.org/pc-agendas-minutes
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-application.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-application.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/boundary-survey.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rezoning-site-plan-11-23-2020.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/sample-floor-plans.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/sample-exterior-elevations.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-staff-report-01-20-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/pc-case-report-rz-21-01-lup-21-01-feb-23-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-staff-report-02-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-lup-21-01-conditions-only-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-draft-ordinance-approval-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-draft-ordinance-approval-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/lup-21-01-draft-ordinance-denial-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/rz-21-01-lup-21-01/rz-21-01-draft-ordinance-denial-2-24-2021.pdf


 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-07 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE 
LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 2.765± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Low-Density Residential 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 2 of 6 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend the designated land use as it applies to the 2.765± acre tract of land located at 

2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot 

single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    The future land use designation of the 2.765± acre tract of land as 

shown on the site plan entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, 

Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in 

Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is 

hereby changed from Low-Density Residential to Medium-Density Residential. 

This change in future land use is to be noted on the City of Snellville 2040 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, as previously amended and as approved by 

the Mayor and Council as soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this 

Ordinance. The future land use map shall also be amended with an editorial note 

specifying the date this Snellville Land Use Plan Amendment was approved by the 

Mayor and Council and specifying the parcel affected by this Ordinance. Until the change 

is indicated on the City of Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

approved by the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over the City of 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council to the extent of any discrepancy between this Ordinance and the City of 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 3 of 6 
 

Snellville 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map approved by the Mayor and 

Council. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 4 of 6 
 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 





 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-07 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE 2040 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, FOR A 2.765± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 
LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 
2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
CASE NUMBER: #LUP 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP DESIGNATION: Low-Density Residential 
 
REQUESTED FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AMENDMENT: Medium-Density Residential 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor 

and Council thereof; and 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 2 of 5 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny LUP 21-01, which requested to amend the designated land use as it applies to the 

2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.    For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon review of the 

application submitted by Applicant, the request for a change in the future land use 

designation of the 2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the site plan entitled “Proposed 

Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-

2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 3 of 5 
 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on _________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 4 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this _____ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-07     #LUP 21-01  Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-08 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 2.765± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT 
COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; 
TO ADD CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: RS-30 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 2 of 7 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 

Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-

family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the rezoning site plan entitled “Proposed 

Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-

2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference is hereby changed from RS-30 (Single-family 

Residential) District to RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District. This action is subject to 

the attachment of the following conditions (1-7): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the rezoning site plan 

entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, GA 

30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021), with 

modifications permitted to meet conditions of zoning or State, County, and 

City regulations. Substantial variation from the rezoning site plan, as 

determined by the Director of Planning and Development will require Mayor 

and Council approval. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 3 of 7 
 

2. All lots shall connect to sanitary sewer. 

3. A Property Owner’s Association shall be established for the continuous 

maintenance of open space, stormwater detention facility, and entrance 

signage. 

4. Twenty (20) percent of the total site area must be conserved as open space and 

subject to the Open Space regulations of Sec. 401-2 of Chapter 4 of the 

Snellville Unified Development Ordinance.  

5. Subdivision entrance signage (if any) shall be located on Open Space. 

6. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited. 

7. Two-car garages are required for dwellings having more than two (2) 

bedrooms. 

Section 2.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial 

note specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor 

and Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by 

the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City 

of Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any 

discrepancy between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 4 of 7 
 

 Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 5 of 7 
 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 6 of 7 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 7 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 





 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-08 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 2.765± 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN LAND LOT 28 OF THE 5TH LAND 
DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 2706 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER: #RZ 21-01 
 
SIZE: 2.765± Acres 
 
LOCATION: 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 
 Georgia 
 
TAX PARCEL: R5028 001 
 
CURRENT ZONING MAP: RS-30 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
REQUESTED ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: RS-5 (Single-family Residential) District 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: 13-Lot Single-family Detached Residential 
 Subdivision 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Britt and Camp, LLC, Snellville, Georgia 
  
APPLICANT/CONTACT: AXIS Infrastructure, LLC 
 c/o Lorraine Canada 
 678-395-4920  
 or lorrainecanada@axiscompanies.com 
  
  

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 2 of 5 
 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny RZ 21-01, which requested to amend the official zoning map as it applies to the 

2.765± acre tract of land located at 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax 

Parcel R5028 001) for a 13-lot single-family detached residential subdivision; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by the Applicant, the request for a change to the Official Zoning 

Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 2.765± acre tract of land as shown on the 

rezoning site plan entitled “Proposed Subdivision 2706 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, 

GA 30078”, sealed and dated 1-5-2021 (stamped received 1-6-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a 

copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied. 

 Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 3 of 5 
 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 4.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 5.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 4 of 5 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-08     #RZ 21-01  Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
TO: The Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Jason Thompson, Director 

Department of Planning and Development 
 
DATE: March 22, 2021 
 
RE: #CIC 21-01 
 
DEVELOPMENT: Rejoice in The Word Church International Ministry, Inc. 

5.47± Acre Site at 3079 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia 
   
STATUS: Public Hearing (2nd Reading) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Application to amend the conditions of zoning for rezoning case #07-01 
approved by the Mayor and Council on 2-26-2007 to allow parking to be located 
between the sanctuary building and street (Lenora Church Road).  

 
Financial Impact:  Minimal 
 
Planning Commission 
Meeting: February 23, 2021 
 
Recommendations: 

Case No.  CIC 21-01 
Planning 
Department Approval 

Planning 
Commission Approval 

 
Mayor and Council 
Meetings: March 8, 2021 (1st Reading)  

March 22, 2021 (2nd Reading and Public Hearing) 
 
Action requested: Consideration, Public Hearing and Action 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 

City of Snellville  2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3514 www.snellville.org 



 
 
 
 
5.47± Acre Site at 3079 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia  
Case #CIC 21-01 
March 22, 2021  
Page… 2 
 
 
Case Documents (website link): 
 

• Letter of Intent & Impact Analysis (1-6-2021) 
• #CIC 21-01 Application (1-6-2021) 
• 2-26-2007 Mayor and Council Meeting Minutes (1-11-2021) 
• Assembly Building Floor Plan (1-6-2021) 
• 11-1-2020 Zoning Site Plan Exhibit (1-6-2021) 
• 8-12-2020 Site Plan (1-6-2021) 
• 5-17-2020 Grading Plan (1-6-2021) 
• 2-23-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (1-25-

2021) 
• Unofficial 2-23-2021 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes (2-24-

2021) 
• 2-23-2021 Planning Commission Case Report (2-24-2021) 
• 3-8-2021 & 3-22-2021 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis 

with Planning Commission Report (2-24-2021) 
• Conditions Only Recommendations (2-24-2021) 
• #CIC 21-01 Approval Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 
• #CIC 21-01 Denial Draft Ordinance (2-24-2021) 

https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/letter-of-intent--impact-analysis-1-6-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/cic-21-01-application-1-6-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/2-26-2007-mc-minutes.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/rejoice-in-the-word-church-floor-plan.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/ritw-site-exhibit-1.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/ritw-c2.0-site-plan-1.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/ritw-c3.0-grading-plan-1.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/cic-21-01-staff-report-01-25-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/pc-case-report-cic-21-01-feb-23-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/cic-21-01-staff-report-02-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/cic-21-01-conditions-only-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/cic-21-01-draft-ordinance-approval-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/Data/Sites/1/media/planning-development/documents/2021-agenda-packet/cic-21-01/cic-21-01-draft-ordinance-denial-2-24-2021.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/pc-agendas-minutes


 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 1 of 7 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-09 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 5.47± ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED IN LAND LOT 29 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT 
COUNTY, GEORGIA, 3079 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; 
TO ADD CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO REPEAL CONDITIONS 
AFFECTING THE PROPERTY; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER:  #CIC 21-01 
 
REQUEST: Rezoning Change in Conditions 
 
LOCATION:  3079 Lenora Church Road, Snellville,  
 Georgia 
 
SIZE: 5.47± Acres 
 
TAX PARCEL:  5029 090 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  CI (Civic Institutional) District 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND PLAN:  Public-Civic 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT:  Place of Worship 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Rejoice in The Word Church 
 International Ministry, Inc. 
 Snellville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Concept Engineering Services 
 Peachtree Corners, Georgia 
 Emmanuel Abua, P.E. 
 404-643-6044 
 or conceptengrsceo@gmail.com 

 



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 2 of 7 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

amend its official zoning map as it applies to the 5.47± acre tract of land located at 3079 

Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5029 090) for a place of worship 

and associated parking; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  The Official Zoning Map for the City of Snellville, Georgia for the 

5.47± acre tract of land as shown on the rezoning site plan entitled “Rejoice in The Word 

3079 Lenora Church Road Snellville, GA 30078”, dated 8-20-2020 (stamped received 1-

12-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference is hereby zoned CI (Civic-Institutional) District. This action is subject to the 

attachment of the following conditions (1-5): 

CONDITIONS: 

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the rezoning site plan 

entitled “Rejoice in The Word 3079 Lenora Church Road Snellville, GA 

30078”, dated 8-20-2020 (stamped received 1-12-2021), with modifications 

permitted to meet conditions of zoning or State, County, and City regulations. 

Substantial variation from the rezoning site plan, as determined by the 



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 3 of 7 
 

Director of Planning and Development will require Mayor and Council 

approval. 

2. New signs higher than 15 feet and larger than 225 sq. ft. in area are prohibited. 

3. Uses involving adult entertainment, including the sale or display of adult 

magazines, books, or videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment 

Ordinance in effect on the date this condition is imposed, are prohibited. 

4. No buffer is required between the subject property and the Church of Christ at 

Snellville to the north (parcel 5029 090). 

5. A twenty-foot (20’) undisturbed buffer is required on the western edge of the 

property where abutting parcels (5029 249; 5029 248; 5029 201 and 5029 

200). 

Section 2.  The attachment of Conditions (1-6) for #RZ 07-01 approved 2-26-

2007 by the Mayor and Council are hereby repealed.  

Section 3.  The changes in zoning classification are to be noted on the Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as 

soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance.  The Official 

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial 

note specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor 

and Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance.  Until the changes are 

indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by 

the Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City 

of Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any 



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 4 of 7 
 

discrepancy between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of 

Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council. 

 Section 4. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 5.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 5 of 7 
 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 6.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 7.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 8.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
 
 

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 6 of 7 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 7 of 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.

CES-2020-041-C

DATE:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO.:

SHEET:

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DO-CES

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT:

REVISIONS:

NO.
DATE

DESCRIPTION

SEAL:

THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF CES LLC.

IT IS ONLY TO BE USED FOR THE PROJECT AND

LOCATION IDENTIFIED HEREIIN. NO PART OF

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE REPRODUCED.

STORED IN A RETREVAL SYSTEM OR

TRANSMITTED IN ANY FORM BY MEANS

ELECTRONIC, MECHANICAL, PHOTOCOPYING

OR OTHERWISE WITHOUT THE PRIOR

PERMISSION OF CES LLC.

AS SHOWN

3079 LENORA CHURCH ROAD
SNELLVILLE, GA 30078

CLIENT:

ARCHITECTURE

ENGINEERING

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

ENERGY ENGINEERING

6735 Peachtree Industrial Blvd. Suite 100

Northpark Town Center, Suite 1700
Atlanta GA 30326

EMAIL: eabua@conceptengrs.net

TEL: (404) 643-6044

CONCEPT

ENGINEERING

SERVICES INC.

DJ

DJ

DO-CES

REJOICE IN
THE WORD

SITE PLAN

C2.0












































8-12-2020



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 1 of 6 
 

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-09 

  
AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE REQUEST FOR CHANGE IN CONDITIONS TO 
AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, 
GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, FOR A 5.47± ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN 
LAND LOT 29 OF THE 5TH LAND DISTRICT, GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, 
3079 LENORA CHURCH ROAD, SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 
 
CASE NUMBER:  #CIC 21-01 
 
REQUEST: Rezoning Change in Conditions 
 
LOCATION:  3079 Lenora Church Road, Snellville,  
 Georgia 
 
SIZE: 5.47± Acres 
 
TAX PARCEL:  5029 090 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  CI (Civic Institutional) District 
 
CURRENT FUTURE LAND PLAN:  Public-Civic 
 
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT:  Place of Worship 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Rejoice in The Word Church 
 International Ministry, Inc. 
 Snellville, Georgia 
 
APPLICANT/CONTACT: Concept Engineering Services 
 Peachtree Corners, Georgia 
 Emmanuel Abua, P.E. 
 404-643-6044 
 or conceptengrsceo@gmail.com 

 



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 2 of 6 
 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council thereof; and, 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia desires to 

deny CIC 21-01, which requested to amend the conditions affecting the property that 

were approved on 2-26-2007 for RZ 07-01 as it applies to the 5.47± acre tract of land 

located at 3079 Lenora Church Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel R5029 090) for a 

place of worship and associated parking; and, 

 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia, 

will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore: 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  

 Section 1.  For reasons stated in the public hearing and upon a review of the 

application submitted by the Applicant, the request for a change in conditions approved 

on 2-26-2007 for RZ 07-01 for the 5.47± acre tract of land as shown on the rezoning site 

plan entitled “Rejoice in The Word 3079 Lenora Church Road Snellville, GA 30078”, 

dated 8-20-2020 (stamped received 1-12-2021) in Exhibit “A”, a copy of which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby denied.. 

Section 2.  Conditions (1-6) for #RZ 07-01 approved 2-26-2007 by the Mayor and 

Council remain in full force and effect and are restated as follows: 

1. New signs higher than 15 feet and larger than 225 square feet are prohibited; 

2. Uses involving adult ente1tainment, including any sale or display of adult 

magazines, books, or videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment 

Ordinance in effect on the date this condition is imposed, are prohibited; 



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 3 of 6 
 

3. The property shall be developed in general accordance with the submitted site 

plan dated 12/08/06, Concept Plan, Canaan Land Church Int'l, with 

modifications to meet conditions of zoning or State, County, and City 

regulations. Substantial variation from the concept plan, as determined by the 

Director of Planning and Development, will require Mayor and Council 

approval; 

4. No buffer is required between the subject property and the Church of Christ of 

Snellville to the north (parcel 5029-090); 

5. A twenty-foot (20') buffer is required on the western edge of the subject 

property where abutting parcels (5029-249, 5029-248, 5029-201, and 5029-

200); and 

6. Parking may be constructed as shown on the submitted concept plan 

referenced in condition #3 to allow the construction of a covered drop-off area 

and 3 handicapped parking spots in front of the building. 

 Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is 

hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and 

Council that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

or were, upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, 

enforceable and constitutional. 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 4 of 6 
 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent 

allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the 

Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 

Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Snellville at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall 

be and are hereby made applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

 Section 6.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby expressly repealed 

 Section 7.   This Ordinance was adopted on __________________, 2021.  The 

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated 

herein. 

 
[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]  



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 5 of 6 
 

ORDAINED this ______ day of March, 2021. 
   
  
            
           
 
             
       Barbara Bender, Mayor 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Dave Emanuel, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
             
Melisa Arnold, City Clerk    Cristy Lenski, Council Member 
 
 
             
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    Solange Destang, Council Member 
 
 
             
W. Charles Ross, City Attorney   Gretchen Schulz, Council Member 
Powell & Edwards, P.C. 
 
             
       Tod Warner, Council Member 
 
 
 

  



 

ORD 2021-09     #CIC 21-01  Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 



Agenda Item Summary 
 
 
 
Date:  March 8, 2021 
 
 
Prepared by:  Butch Sanders 
 
 
Agenda item:  Update to Master Development Agreement 
 
Background: With the imminent finalization and adoption of all development documents with 
Mid Cast (JDA, Parking Agreements, etc.) it is a good time to make sure the development 
process they describe, and which all parties will follow, are complimentary with the original 
Master Development Agreement. This amendment assures that is the case by cleaning-up the 
changes from the latest property descriptions, removing earlier language in the MDA which was 
discarded in the current documents and identifying the closing process which all parties have 
now agreed to implement. This can best be described as a housekeeping measure which tracks 
the agreements M&C approved as to form last month.   

 
 
Financial Impact:  0 (zero) 
 
 
Recommendation: Review and approve the proposed Amendment to the MDA 
 
 
Action requested:  VOTE to approve the Amendment. 
 
 
Attachments: Proposed clean-up amendment to the MDA 
 

City of Snellville 2342 Oak Road Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3500 www.snellville.org



1 

ELEVENTH AMENDMENT TO THE  
MASTER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 This Eleventh Amendment to the Master Development Agreement (this “Amendment”) is 
entered into as of March ____, 2021 by and among the CITY OF SNELLVILLE, a municipal 
corporation created and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia (the “City”), the 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE, an 
authority created and existing under the Georgia Downtown Development Authorities Law 
(O.C.G.A. §36-42-1, et al) (the “DDA”; the City and the DDA are sometimes hereinafter 
collectively referred to as the “City Parties”), and MID CAST SNELLVILLE, LLC, a Florida 
limited liability company (“Developer”). The City Parties and Developer collectively are referred 
to as “Parties.” 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into that certain Master Development Agreement dated 
August 26, 2019, as amended by that certain First Amendment to the Master Development 
Agreement dated September 25, 2019, Second Amendment to the Master Development Agreement 
dated March 23, 2020 (the “Second Amendment”), Third Amendment to Master Development 
Agreement dated May 26, 2020, Fourth Amendment to Master Development Agreement dated 
June 22, 2020, Fifth Amendment to Master Development Agreement dated August 19, 2020, Sixth 
Amendment to Master Development Agreement dated September 21, 2020, Seventh Amendment 
to Master Development Agreement dated October 26, 2020, Eighth Amendment to Master 
Development Agreement dated November 11, 2020, Ninth Amendment to the Master 
Development Agreement dated December 3, 2020, and Tenth Amendment to Master Development 
Agreement dated January 29, 2021 (the “Tenth Amendment”) (collectively, as at any time 
amended or affected, the “Master Development Agreement”) for the development of the City of 
Snellville’s Towne Center; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend certain provisions of the Master Development 
Agreement by means of this Amendment as more particularly set forth herein.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of $10.00, the mutual covenants 

contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Master Development Agreement is hereby 
amended and the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Recitals; Defined Terms. The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated herein 

as if restated in their entireties. All initially capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined 
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Master Development Agreement.  

2. Critical Conditions. The Parties agree that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
in the Master Development Agreement, the date “November 30, 2020” in Section 11.2 of the 
Master Development Agreement (which date was previously extended to March 12, 2021 pursuant 
to the Tenth Amendment) is hereby replaced with “April 16, 2021.” 

3. Certain Definitions.  



2 

(a) Association, Association Properties and Common Areas/Master 
Declaration.  The defined terms the “Association”, the “Association Properties” and/or the 
“Common Areas” and all references thereto shall be deleted in their entireties and are of no further 
relevance (and, for the avoidance of doubt, there will be no Association that owns the Association 
Properties, Common Areas, Private Roads or the like). In addition, the Parties have agreed upon 
the final form of the Master Declaration (subject to any future mutually approved revisions) and, 
therefore, except as otherwise expressly set forth in said Master Declaration, the Master 
Declaration contains the entire understanding among the Parties and supersedes any prior 
understanding and agreements between them respecting the subject matter thereof. 
Notwithstanding anything in the Master Development Agreement to the contrary, in the event of 
any conflict between the terms and definitions of said Master Declaration and the terms and 
definitions of the Master Development Agreement, the terms and definitions of the Master 
Declaration shall control. 

(b) Joint Site Development Agreement.  All references in the Master 
Development Agreement to the “Joint Site Development Agreement” shall also mean the “Joint 
Development Agreement” which are one and the same document.  In addition, the Parties have 
agreed upon the final form of the Joint Development Agreement (subject to any future mutually 
approved revisions) and, therefore, except as set forth in said Joint Development Agreement, the 
Joint Development Agreement contains the entire understanding among the Parties and supersedes 
any prior understanding and agreements between them respecting the subject matter thereof. 
Notwithstanding anything in the Master Development Agreement to the contrary, in the event of 
any conflict between the terms and definitions of said Joint Development Agreement and the terms 
and definitions of the Master Development Agreement, the terms and definitions of the Joint 
Development Agreement shall control. 

(c) The Grove. All references to the “Town Green” and “Towne Green” shall 
mean and refer to “The Grove”.  

4. Parcels and Exhibits. 

(a) Master Conceptual Plan/Exhibit A; Parcel Survey/Exhibit B.  As of the date 
of this Amendment, Exhibit A (Master Conceptual Plan) and Exhibit B (Parcel Survey) to the 
Master Development Agreement shall be deleted in their entireties and each shall be replaced with 
the revised Master Conceptual Plan attached as Exhibit A hereto, and incorporated herein by this 
reference. Accordingly, from and after the date hereof, Exhibit B to the Master Development 
Agreement shall be “reserved” and all references in the Master Development Agreement to Exhibit 
A (Master Conceptual Plan) and Exhibit B (Parcel Survey) shall mean and refer to the revised 
Master Conceptual Plan attached as Exhibit A hereto. 

(b) Phase I Property/Exhibit D. As of the date of this Amendment, Exhibit D to 
the Master Development Agreement shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with Exhibit D 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, and the “Phase I Property” and “Phase 
II Property” as defined in the Master Development Agreement shall mean the Phase I Property and 
Phase II Property, respectively, identified on such Exhibit D.  



3 

(c) Developer Parcels. Notwithstanding anything in the Master Development 
Agreement to the contrary, the “Developer Parcels” and all references thereto shall mean (1) those 
certain parcels of the Phase I Property designated on the Master Conceptual Plan (as amended by 
this Amendment) as (i) Parcels 2a and b(Multifamily), (ii) Parcel 6a(Commercial 1), (iii) Parcel 
6b(Commercial 2), (iv) Parcel 8(Commercial 3), and (v) Parcel 9(Commercial 4), and (2) those 
certain parcels of the Phase II Property designated in the Master Conceptual Plan as Parcels 11 
and 12. For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree that there is no Parcel 10.  

(d) Municipal Development Parcels.  Notwithstanding anything in the Master 
Development Agreement to the contrary, the “Municipal Development Parcels” and all references 
thereto shall mean those certain parcels of the Phase I Property designated on the Master 
Conceptual Plan (as amended by this Agreement) as (i) Parcel 1(Parking Deck), (ii) Parcel 
4a(Library/Community), and (iii) Parcel 4b(Market) (which parcels are sometimes referred to 
herein, collectively, as the “Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels”), and (iv) Parcel 
3(Street A/Library Plaza), (v) Parcel 5(Grove/Promenade), and (vi) Parcel 7 (Street B, Street C 
and Street C Pedestrian) (which parcels are sometimes referred to herein, collectively, as the 
“Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels”), and (2) those certain parcels of the Phase II 
Property designated in the Master Conceptual Plan as Parcels 13, 14 and 15. 

5. Developer Closing Date.  

(a) The Parties agree that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the 
Master Development Agreement, the date “February 28, 2021” in Section 3.3(a) of the Master 
Development Agreement (which date was previously extended to April 29, 2021 pursuant to the 
Second Amendment) is hereby replaced with “May 31, 2021”. 

(b) The definition of “Developer Closing Date” set forth in Section 1.1 of the 
Master Development Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and the Parties agree that Section 
3.3(a) of the Master Development Agreement, as amended above, shall dictate the timing of the 
Developer Closings for the Phase I Property and the Phase II Property. 

6. City Parties Closing Date.  Notwithstanding anything in the Master Development 
Agreement to the contrary, the City Parties Closing shall be bifurcated into two (2) separate 
closings: a closing with respect to the Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcel and a closing with 
respect to the Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels, each as more particularly described in, 
and pursuant to the terms and conditions of, the Joint Development Agreement and subject to the 
following terms and conditions: 

(a) Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels.  The DDA shall purchase the 
Phase I(a) Municipal Development Parcels from the Developer, pursuant to and in accordance with 
the terms and conditions of Section 3.4 of the Master Development Agreement, within fifteen (15) 
days after the Completion Date with respect to the Site Work (as such terms are defined in the 
Joint Development Agreement) for an aggregate amount as set forth in Section 3(e) of the Joint 
Development Agreement. 

(b) Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels.  The DDA shall purchase the 
Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels from Developer, pursuant to and in accordance with 



4 

the terms and provisions set forth in Section 3.4 of the Master Development Agreement, as 
modified by the Joint Development Agreement for the Phase I(b) Municipal Development Parcels, 
within fifteen (15) days after the Completion Date of the Other Work (as such terms are defined 
in the Joint Development Agreement) for an aggregate amount as set forth in Section 4(h) of the 
Joint Development Agreement. 

7. Miscellaneous. To the extent of any conflict between this Amendment and the 
provisions of the Master Development Agreement, this Amendment shall govern and control in all 
respects. Except as amended by this Amendment, all other terms and provisions of the Master 
Development Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as originally set out therein. This 
Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of which together shall constitute a 
single instrument, and each of which shall be deemed an original of this Amendment for all 
purposes, notwithstanding that less than all signatures appear on any one counterpart. Electronic 
signatures to this Amendment, whether digital or encrypted (including, without limitation, .pdf 
scan copies, DocuSign signatures and similar formats) as executed by the parties, and regardless 
of the form of delivery (including but not limited to electronic delivery), shall be deemed and 
treated as executed originals for all purposes, and such electronic signatures shall be valid and 
binding for all purposes when transmitted to and actually received by the other party. 

[SIGNATURES COMMENCE ON FOLLOWING PAGE]



Signature Page to 
11th Amendment to MDA 

Snellville Towne Center 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment under seal as of the 
date first above written. 

 
 CITY: 

 
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
By:         
Name:         
 Title:         
 

  
 
 
 
Attest:         
City Clerk  
 

 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]  

 

  



Signature Page to 
11th Amendment to MDA 

Snellville Towne Center 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED FROM PREVIOUS PAGE] 

 

 DDA: 
 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 
THE CITY OF SNELLVILLE 
 
By:         
Name:         
Title:         
 
 
Attest:          
Name:         
Title:         
 

 
 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]  

 

  



Signature Page to 
11th Amendment to MDA 

Snellville Towne Center 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED FROM PREVIOUS PAGE] 

 

 DEVELOPER: 
 
MID CAST SNELLVILLE, LLC,  
a Florida limited liability company 
 
 
By:         
Name: Kirk S. Demetrops 
Title: Manager 

 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

MASTER CONCEPTUAL PLAN / PARCEL SURVEY 
 

[to be inserted] 
  



 
 

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

STC PROJECT – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

PHASE I PROPERTY: 
 
Being all that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lots 26 & 39, 5th District, City of 
Snellville, Gwinnett County, Georgia and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
To find the Point of Beginning, commence at the point of intersection of the Northeasterly Right-
of-Way Line of Oak Road (an apparent variable width right of way), and the Southeasterly Right-
of-Way Line of North Road (an apparent variable width right of way), said point being at State 
Plane Coordinate (Georgia West Zone) of North: 1,404,139.932; East: 2,341,657.634; thence, 
leaving the said Point of Beginning and running with the said line of Oak Road, South 46° 00' 
07" East, 9.27 feet to the True Point of Beginning of the herein described tract or parcel of land; 
thence, leaving the said Point of Beginning and said line of Oak Road and running along a new 
Proposed Right of Way Line of North Road 
 

1. North 34° 30' 32" East, 108.38 feet; thence, 
2. North 34° 39' 07" East, 75.02 feet; thence, 
3. North 34° 07' 51" East, 96.90 feet; thence, 
4. North 29° 22' 38" East, 94.01 feet; thence, 
5. North 30° 09' 20" East, 117.04 feet; thence, 
6. North 31° 11' 12" East, 28.98 feet; thence, 
7. North 31° 11' 12" East, 49.90 feet; thence, running along a new proposed mitered corner 

between North Road and Wisteria Drive 
8. North 87° 28' 26" East, 22.20 feet; thence, running along a new Proposed Right of Way 

Line of Wisteria Drive 
9. South 36° 14' 21" East, 32.74 feet; thence, 
10. 43.35 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 887.53 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 37° 38' 28" East, 43.35 feet; thence, 
11. South 03° 38' 06" West, 8.12 feet; thence, 
12. 117.96 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 778.66 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 45° 53' 41" East, 117.85 feet; thence, 
13. 13.46 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 887.53 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 47° 26' 23" East, 13.46 feet; thence, 
14. 20.82 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 887.53 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 48° 32' 47" East, 20.82 feet; thence, 
15. South 49° 12' 57" East, 19.58 feet; thence, 
16. 9.34 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 1,115.76 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 49° 48' 57" East, 9.34 feet; thence, 
17. 91.73 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 637.50 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 54° 10' 39" East, 91.65 feet; thence, 
18. South 58° 17' 58" East, 31.38 feet; thence, 
19. South 58° 17' 58" East, 207.04 feet to a point on the existing Right of Way Line of 

Wisteria Drive (an apparent variable width right of way); thence, running with the said 
existing line of Wisteria Drive 

20. South 33° 08' 28" West, 6.53 feet; thence, 



 
 

21. South 57° 26' 49" East, 31.11 feet to a concrete right of way monument found; thence, 
22. 46.90 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 824.00 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 55° 26' 36" East, 46.89 feet to a concrete 
right of way monument found; thence, 

23. 165.77 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 824.00 feet 
and a chord bearing and distance of South 48° 02' 42" East, 165.49 feet; thence, 

24. South 40° 56' 00" East, 117.77 feet to a concrete right of way monument found on the 
north end of a mitered intersection between aforesaid Wisteria Drive and Clower Street 
(an apparent variable width right of way); thence, running with the said miter 

25. 21.48 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 67.00 feet and 
a chord bearing and distance of South 06° 40' 59" West, 21.38 feet to a concrete right of 
way monument found on the Northwesterly Right-of-Way Line of said Clower Street; 
thence, running with the said line of Clower Street 

26. South 47° 22' 54" West, 168.02 feet; thence, 
27. South 47° 22' 54" West, 121.64 feet; thence, 
28. South 47° 42' 46" West, 97.36 feet; thence, 
29. 33.28 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 710.00 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of South 48° 50' 47" West, 33.28 feet; thence, leaving 
the aforesaid line of Clower Street and running adjacent to the property now or formerly 
owned by Kikasha Properties 8, LLC, as described in a deed recorded among the 
aforesaid Land Records in Deed Book 51789, Page 75 

30. North 29° 10' 12" West, 163.58 feet to a 1 inch open top pipe found; thence, 
31. South 60° 19' 54" West, 168.30 feet to a point on the aforesaid line of Oak Road; thence, 

running with the said line of Oak Road 
32. North 29° 36' 36" West, 144.74 feet; thence, 
33. North 31° 49' 23" West, 110.08 feet; thence, 
34. North 32° 22' 21" West, 7.18 feet; thence, 
35. 47.5 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 195.00 feet and 

a chord bearing and distance of North 38° 48' 05" West, 47.38 feet; thence, leaving the 
said line of Oak Road and running along a new Proposed Right of Way Line of Oak 
Road 

36. South 34° 42' 14" West, 7.34 feet; thence, 
37. 72.25 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 185.15 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of North 56° 16' 17" West, 71.79 feet; thence, 
38. 108.67 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 185.15 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of North 84° 15' 52" West, 107.11 feet; thence, 
39. South 78° 55' 17" West, 21.17 feet to a point on the existing Right of Way Line of 

aforesaid Oak Road; thence, running with the existing Right of Way Line of Oak Road 
40. 126.07 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the right, having a radius of 160.99 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of North 68° 16' 35" West, 122.87 feet; thence, 
41. North 46° 00' 07" West, 49.03 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 439,087 square 

feet or 10.0801 acres of land, more or less. 
 
 
PHASE II PROPERTY: 
 
Being all that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lot 39, 5th District, City of Snellville, 
Gwinnett County, Georgia and being more particularly described as follows: 
 



 
 

Beginning for the same at concrete right of way monument found on the Northeasterly Right-of-
Way Line of Wisteria Drive (an apparent variable width right of way) said point being at State 
Plane Coordinate (Georgia West Zone) of North: 1,404,304.588; East: 2,342,506.089; thence, 
leaving the said Point of Beginning and the said line of Wisteria Drive and running with the 
property now or formerly owned by Timothy L. Stewart, as described in a deed recorded among 
the Land Records of Gwinnett County, Georgia in Deed Book 11173, Page 315 
 

1. North 57° 08' 00" East, 566.80 feet to a ¾ inch rod found; thence, running with the lines 
of a subdivision entitled, “N.L. Williams Subdivision, Block A, Unit 1”, as recorded among 
the aforesaid Land Records in Plat Book H, Page 105, 

2. South 44° 37' 23" East, 65.20 feet to a ¾ inch open top pipe found; thence, 
3. South 45° 32' 47" East, 150.03 feet; thence, 
4. South 45° 31' 16" East, 300.00 feet; thence, 
5. South 45° 32' 07" East, 149.16 feet to a ½ inch open top pipe found; thence, running 

with the property now or formerly owned by Wisteria Place Owner’s Association, Inc., as 
described in a deed recorded among the aforesaid Land Records in Deed Book 47825, 
Page 890 

6. South 58° 56' 14" West, 595.66 feet to a point on the aforesaid line of Wisteria Drive; 
thence, running with the said line of Wisteria Drive 

7. North 39° 41' 34" West, 169.99 feet; thence, 
8. 114.79 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 67.00 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of North 38° 22' 53" West, 101.26 feet to a concrete 
right of way monument found; thence, 

9. North 39° 00' 05" West, 117.66 feet to a concrete right of way monument found; thence, 
10. North 41° 51' 57" West, 4.51 feet to a concrete right of way monument found; thence, 
11. 158.60 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 800.00 feet 

and a chord bearing and distance of North 46° 29' 30" West, 158.34 feet to a concrete 
right of way monument found; thence, 

12. 82.46 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the left, having a radius of 800.00 feet 
and a chord bearing and distance of North 55° 30' 06" West, 82.42 feet to a concrete 
right of way monument found (leaning); thence, 

13. North 56° 41' 47" West, 9.52 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 357,680 square 
feet or 8.2112 acres of land, more or less. 

 







Agenda Item Summary 
 
 
 
Date:  March 22, 2021 
 
 
Prepared by:  Lisa A Platt, CPRP  
                    Director Parks & Recreation 
 
Agenda item:   
Consideration and Action on Surplus of Parks & Recreation Items 
 
Background:   
The Park has multiple pieces of machinery that are old, inoperable in current 
condition, and the cost to repair for general use would exceed the value of the 
equipment.  The items are:   
 
Aluminum Bleachers:     
4 sets fair condition - 15’ length   5 row, 12” seat, 6” rise.  Some welds broken, 
some bolts for benches missing, some end caps missing  
2 sets poor condition 
   
Bush Hog Pull Behind finishing mower: 
Model RDTH72  S/N 3-17991 - 72” mowing deck, 2 blades, PTO connection not 
working. 
 
The City will dispose of these by selling them on ebay. 
  
Financial Impact:  
There is a small cost to list these items on ebay, but that is usually recouped in 
the sale.  
 
Recommendation:  
Approve the surplus of the equipment listed for disposal. 
 
Action requested:   
Motion and affirmative vote to approve the listed equipment for surplus.   
 
Attachments:  
• None 

City of Snellville 2342 Oak Road Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3500 www.snellville.org



Agenda Item Summary 
 
 
 
 
Date:  March 22, 2021 
 
 
Prepared by:  Lt. David Matson  
 
 
Agenda item:   
Consideration and Action on Surplus of City Police Vehicles 

1. Police Unit 145 2006 Chevrolet Impala 2G1WS551X69270265 
2. Police Unit 152 2006 Chevrolet Impala 2G1WS551269354676 

Background: 
These vehicles are in poor shape and are no longer being utilized by the Police Department.  The 
City will dispose of these vehicles by selling them on eBay. 
 
Financial Impact: 
There is a small cost to list the vehicles on eBay, which is recouped in the sale. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the surplus of these vehicles for disposal. 
 
Action requested:  
Motion and affirmative vote to approve the listed vehicles for surplus.   
 
Attachments: 
• None 
 

City of Snellville 2342 Oak Road Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3500 www.snellville.org



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
 
Date:  March 22, 2021 
 
 
Prepared by:  Butch Sanders 
 
 
Agenda Item: Confirmation of Expiration of Temporary Easements 
 
 
Background: This document provides legal documentation for Mid Cast and their 
lender that three old temporary easements obtained by the City for LCI 
improvements have indeed expired.     
 
Financial Impact:  -0-  
 
 
Recommendation: Approve the Document   
 
 
Action requested: VOTE to approve the document   
 
 
Attachments: 1. Confirmation document prepared by Powell and Edwards 
                          
 

City of Snellville 2342 Oak Road Snellville, GA 30078  770.985.3500 www.snellville.org



 

 

 

 

              
[Space above this line for Recorder’s use.] 

 

Return to: Powell & Edwards, PC 

 P.O. Box 1390 

 Lawrenceville, GA 30046 

   

  

 
STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF GWINNETT 

 

CONFIRMATION OF EXPIRATION OF TEMPORARY EASEMENTS 

 

 The undersigned hereby confirms that the temporary easements contained in the following 

documents have expired: 

 

1. Right of Way Deed executed by Carolyn Joy Ray to the City of Snellville, dated July 21, 

2011, filed July 22, 2011 and recorded in Deed Book 50783, Page 415, Gwinnett County, 

Georgia records; 

 

2. Right of Way Deed executed by East Mountain Insurors Building Partners, Inc. to the City 

of Snellville, dated January 5, 2012, filed January 10, 2012 and recorded in Deed Book 

51110, Page 137, aforesaid records; and  

 

3. Right of Way Deed executed by Thomas Gerald Rawlins and Barbara Jean Rawlins to the 

City of Snellville dated January 31, 2013, filed February 6, 2013 and recorded in Deed Book 

51995, Page 583, aforesaid records.  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has set its hand and seal this       day of March, 2021. 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered  City of Snellville, Georgia, a political          

in the presence of: subdivision of the State of Georgia 

 

 

  By: (Seal)  

Unofficial Witness                           Barbara Bender, Mayor   

 

 

    

Notary Public                                       

(NOTARIAL SEAL)      

Clerk: Please cross-reference this 

instrument to instruments recorded in 

Deed Book 50783, Page 415, Gwinnett 

County, Georgia records, Deed Book 

51438, Page 576, aforesaid records, and 

Deed Book 51110, Page 137, aforesaid 

records. 



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=59402161&key1=50783&key2=415&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 1/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=59402161&key1=50783&key2=415&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 2/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=59402161&key1=50783&key2=415&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 3/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=59402161&key1=50783&key2=415&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 4/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=59402161&key1=50783&key2=415&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 5/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=60064755&key1=51110&key2=137&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323&… 1/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=60064755&key1=51110&key2=137&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323&… 2/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=60064755&key1=51110&key2=137&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323&… 3/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=60064755&key1=51110&key2=137&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323&… 4/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=60064755&key1=51110&key2=137&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323&… 5/5



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=61928922&key1=51995&key2=583&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 1/4



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=61928922&key1=51995&key2=583&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 2/4



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=61928922&key1=51995&key2=583&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 3/4



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=61928922&key1=51995&key2=583&county=67&countyname=GWINNETT&userid=121323… 4/4


	Work Session Agenda
	Towne Center Documents
	IGA with DDA - Construction, Development & Operation The Grove
	IGA with DDA - Bond Issue


	Public Hearing & Regular Business Agenda
	Announcements
	PRO 2021-05 - Honoring Mrs. Edna Cofer
	PRO 2021-06 - Arab American Herritage Month
	Minutes for Approval
	2nd Reading - RZ 20-04 & LUP 20-03 - 2465 Scenic Hwy -Townhomes 
	ORD 2021-05 - LUP 20-03 - Approval
	ORD 2021-05 - LUP 20-03 - Denial
	ORD 2021-04 - RZ 20-03 - Approval w/Variance Approval
	ORD 2021-04 - RZ 20-03 - Approval w/Variance Denial
	ORD 2021-04 - RZ 20-03 - Denial

	2nd Reading - RZ 21-01  LUP 2021-01 - 2706 Lenora Church Road - SFH
	ORD 2021-07 - LUP 2021-01 - Approval
	ORD 2021-07 - LUP 2021-07 - Denial
	ORD 2021-08 - RZ 21-01 - Approval
	ORD 2021-08 - RZ 2021-01 - Denial 

	2nd Reading - CIC 21-01 - 3079 Lenora Church Rd - Rejoice in the Word Church
	ORD 2021-09 - CIC 21-01 - Approval
	ORD 2021-09 - CIC 21-01 - Denial

	Update to Master Development Agreement
	Surplus of Parks & Recreation Items
	Suprlus of City Police Vehicles
	Confirmation of Expiration of Temporary Easement 



